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VISION 

The Ports Regulator of South Africa will be regarded na�onally and interna�onally as a world-class 

ins�tu�on which sets the standards for economic regula�on in commercial mari�me ports. 

MISSION

The Mission of the Ports Regulator of South Africa is to:  

▪  Exercise economic regula�on of the South African ports system consistent with Government’s 

strategic objec�ves; 

▪  Support the development of the ports industry and system; 

▪  Promote equity of access to ports and to facili�es and services provided in ports; and 

▪  Monitor the ac�vi�es of the Na�onal Ports Authority to ensure that it performs its func�ons in 

accordance with the Na�onal Ports Act, 12 of 2005 (“the Act”). 

VALUES 

The Ports Regulator of South Africa adheres to the values of: 

▪  The Cons�tu�on of the Republic of South Africa, with special reference to the crea�on of a 

democra�c, non-racial, non-sexist, fair society in South Africa; 

▪  Stakeholder focus; 

▪  Fairness; 

▪  Integrity; 

▪  Transparency, accountability and responsibility; 

▪  Honesty and trust; and 

▪  Respect for the trust placed in it for the proper use of taxpayer and stakeholder resource s. 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES 

The strategic objec�ves of the Ports Regulator of South Africa are: 

▪  Establishing all elements of the regulatory framework within its mandate;  

▪  Developing the capacity to deal with all the output requirements of the organisa�on; 

▪  Establishing its reputa�on as an organisa�on with integrity focussed on delivery; 

▪  Ensuring that all port sector par�cipants comply with the Act; and 

▪ Suppor�ng the development of the port system and the port regulatory system architecture. 
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1. Chairperson’s Foreword 

The Ports Regulator has once again lived up to 

its aim of reducing the cost of living to South 

Africans as well as the cost of doing business 

by approving a below infla�on average 

increase on Port Authority tariffs of 2.5% for 

2018/19 announced at our press conference 

on 1 December 2017.  

The Ports Regulator also took cognisance of 

the expected subdued economic ac�vity over 

the tariff period coupled with a strong capital 

expenditure program included in the 

applica�on, and opted to add R345 million to 

the Excessive Tariff Increase Margin Credit 

(ETIMC) to ensure that overall average tariffs 

in the outer two years of the period under 

review and beyond, remain close to the 

infla�on target band. 

In support of South Africa’s economic growth 

and job crea�on impera�ves, the Tariff 

Strategy of July 2015 con�nues to be 

implemented to effect tariff reform and 

achieve cost reflec�ve tariffs over a 10year 

period, and s�ll maintains much lower prices 

for highly beneficiated South African 

manufactured cargo in export containers as 

well as SA manufactured export vehicles, in 

support of local manufacture and 

industrializa�on. 

Also in support of economic development, the 

Regulator has developed, consulted and 

launched an overarching framework for port 

tariff incen�ves (the PTIP) which has received 

its first applica�on. The PTIP forms part of the 

final phase of the Regulator’s tariff strategy 

and serves as a mechanism by which cross-

subsidies within the port tariff structure may 

be implemented, quan�fied, as well as be fair 

and in the public interest. A reduc�on in tariff, 

if jus�fied and approved, will be granted 

through the amendment of a specific tariff 

line. Interested par�es may apply via the PRSA 

website where the applica�on process is 

explained in detail and forms are available.  

Given the many anecdotal accounts of the 

need for the opera�onal performance of SA 

ports to improve, the Regulator also 

undertook the development, consulta�on 

and publishing of a performance incen�ve 

system to ensure future improved efficiency 

in port opera�ons. The performance incen�ve 

system, called Weighted Efficiency Gains on 

Opera�ons (WEGO), allows the Ports 

Authority as a regulator of operators, to gain 

or lose up to 5% profit for up to 10% increase 

or decline (respec�vely) on year on year 

performance for a basket of measurable 

indicators that were consulted with the NPA 

and Port Consulta�ve Commi�ees across the 

country. 

South Africa’s first formal Methodology for 

the Valua�on of the Regulatory Asset Base of 

the Na�onal Ports Authority has been 

completed and published. The Regulator 

concluded that the Trended Original Cost TOC 

approach which ensures Financial Capital 

Maintenance will be the preferred valua�on 

methodology. However, some concerns 

related to the older assets capitalised before 

1990 remain, so assets with capitalisa�on 

dates before 1990 will therefore be treated on 

the basis of the historical cost method, while 

trea�ng any assets created post 1990 on the 

basis of the TOC approach. 

The Ports Regulator has over the years 

significantly lowered tariffs resul�ng in a 

saving of more than R6bn to port users whilst 

maintaining the con�nued sustainability of 

the Na�onal Ports Authority. Over recent 

years, the organisa�on produced the first Port 

Sector Review, and Regulatory Review done 

by stakeholder consulta�on and surveys. 

Other important work over the years included 

the ongoing Global Ports Pricing Comparator 

Study, Capacity U�lisa�on study for SA ports, 

and the Ports Efficiency Benchmarking Study, 

all valuable to reduce the cost of doing 

business with South Africa, and vital to the 

success of the Na�onal Development Plan and 
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our economic success as a country.  The 

Regulator’s compliance monitoring work 

included research on BBBEE and equity of 

access in our ports, and analysing Ports Act 

compliance. Regulator Members have 

proposed addi�onal Ports Act amendments to 

the Dot.  Proposals for legisla�ve 

amendments to the Na�onal Ports Act were 

completed, a workshop held in January 2017 

between Regulator Members and 

Departmental Legal Officials, and a 

memorandum submi�ed to the department 

to take forward though Parliamentary 

processes, which I hope will be supported in 

order to enhance regula�on and prepare for 

the wider transport economic regulator as 

envisaged in the Transport Economic 

Regula�on Bill. 

Most delivery targets have been met in the 

past year and the Ports Regulator achieved a 

“Clean Audit” for the fourth �me.  In the years 

ahead the Regulator intends to con�nue its 

work in the transforma�on and BBBEE 

par�cipa�on of the sector whilst con�nuing 

its analy�cal and compliance work. We hope 

to be able to enhance the capacity of the 

Regulator as required by the NDP, and fill key 

unfunded posts as greater financial resources 

become available 

I would like to recognise the efforts of the 

Regulator Members, staff and management 

for their work in ensuring the success of the 

Regulator. I would like to thank the Minister 

and Deputy Minister as well as the 

Department of Transport and on behalf of the 

Ports Regulator, and ask for their con�nued 

guidance, support and assistance in the years 

ahead.  

________________________ 

THABA MUFAMADI 
Chairperson 
Ports Regulator of South Africa 
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2. Chief Execu�ve Officer’s Report 

Having achieved much progress in the recent 

past in which the Regulator published 

amongst others, a 10 year Port Tariff Strategy, 

the second mul�-year Tariff Methodology 

(MYM2), a Ports Sector Review, a Regulatory 

Review, as well as studies benchmarking 

South African ports to their global peers both 

with respect to pricing as well as 

performance, the past year was dedicated 

mainly to developing, consul�ng and 

comple�ng the elements of the final phase of 

the Tariff Strategy process, namely the design 

of the ports performance incen�ve system 

within the tariff methodology, the 

development of a Valua�on Methodology for 

the NPA Regulatory Asset Base, and the 

development and launch of a framework for 

port tariff incen�ves that would cater for 

beneficia�on and other economic 

impera�ves that are in the public interest.   

The performance incen�ve system, called 

Weighted Efficiency Gains on Opera�ons 

(WEGO), is based on five key indicators that 

were consulted with the NPA and Port 

Consulta�ve Commi�ees in the major 

commercial ports. The system which rewards 

year on year improvements in performance 

and penalises deteriora�ng performance, 

allows the Ports Authority, to gain or lose up 

to 5% profit for up to 10% increase or decline 

on a propor�onal basis. 

For many years, ports sector stakeholders 

have contested the extent of the regulatory 

asset base of the NPA on which a return is 

calculated and deprecia�on allowed within 

the Required Revenue Methodology adopted 

by the Regulator.  In this regard, a�er 

consulta�on, a Methodology for the 

Valua�on of the Regulatory Asset Base of the 

Na�onal Ports Authority has been completed 

and published, and the Regulator has decided 

to use a Financial Capital Maintenance 

approach to directly compensate the 

authority for its capital investments rather 

than replacement costs methods which are 

based on es�mates. The Regulator concluded 

that the Trended Original Cost (TOC) 

approach will be the preferred valua�on 

methodology for post 1991 assets while 

assets with capitalisa�on dates before 1990 

will be treated on the basis of the historical 

cost method. 

In support of beneficia�on, localiza�on and 

industrializa�on, the Regulator has 

developed, consulted and launched the Port 

Tariff Incen�ve Programme  (the PTIP) which 

serves as the mechanism by which port 

stakeholders can apply for cross-subsidies 

within the port tariff structure and these can 

be quan�fied, as well as assessed if beneficial 

to the economy, fair, and in the public 

interest. A reduc�on in tariff, if jus�fied and 

approved, will be granted through the 

amendment of a specific tariff line, and both 

the DOT and the d� will be involved in the 

assessment process. 

In addi�on to a�en�on on the regulatory 

architecture and associated regulatory reform 

ini�a�ves, the Regulator conducted research 

on B-BBEE in the ports sector, a study on 

con�nental port developments, its annual 

global tariff comparator study and other work 

rela�ng to capex as well as the tariff 

assessment for the 2018/19 financial year. In 

addi�on, the Regulator spent much effort on 

its legal compliance and tribunal func�on as 

well as on finalising amendments to the 

Na�onal Ports Act which will assist in be�er 

regula�on, and which are expected to be 

taken forward by the Department of 

Transport through the necessary 

Parliamentary processes in the coming 

financial year. 

In terms of the assessment of the Regulator’s 

work, stakeholder feedback at its Tariff 

Applica�on roadshows con�nued to indicate 

high regard for the Regulator with scores 

averaging in the region of 80%.  The Ports 

Regulator again received a “Clean Audit” from 
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the AG,the fourth since the organisa�on was 

established. 

I would like to thank the Chairperson Mr 

Thaba Mufamadi and Regulator Members as 

well as the Minister, Deputy Minister and the 

Senior Managers and staff of the Department 

of Transport, and look forward to working 

together to enhance and capacitate the Ports 

Regulator and the mari�me sector as a whole. 

I would like to thank my staff and senior 

management for their dedicated service 

beyond the call of duty, in their ongoing 

achievement of the deliverables set out in the 

APP and more. In the year ahead the 

Regulator will con�nue its implementa�on of 

the tariff strategy in bringing about cost 

reflec�ve tariffs and assis�ng South African 

economy by progressively reducing the cost 

of living for our people, and the cost of doing 

business and compe�ng with world markets. 

We will also con�nue the work on monitoring 

the implementa�on of BBBEE targets as 

envisaged in Ports Act Regula�ons and in the 

interests of the radical economic 

transforma�on objec�ves of government. In 

line with the Na�onal Development Plan and 

the development of the Transport Economic 

Regulator, we will strive to enhance the 

capacity of the Regulator, and strive to 

achieve the deliverables set out in the 

Strategic Plan and Annual Performance Plan.   

___________________ 

Mahesh Fakir 

CEO & Accoun�ng Officer 

Ports Regulator of South Africa 
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3. Corporate Report 

The Regulator is the independent South African economic regulator for the ports industry. This 

organisa�on came into being on 04 August 2005 on the promulga�on of the Act. The establishment 

of the Regulator was a key component of the ‘White paper on Na�onal Commercial Ports Policy, 2002’. 

The Act and the policy establishes the ins�tu�onal framework for the ports industry, as well as 

ar�cula�ng a range of mechanisms cri�cal to the stable governance thereof from an economic 

perspec�ve. This governance framework was further developed in the publica�on and coming into 

effect of Regula�ons by the Minister of Transport in November 2007, and the Direc�ves issued by the 

Regulator coming into effect on 06 August 2009. 

The Members of the Ports Regulator (as at 31 March 2018) are: 

▪  Mr. Thaba Mufamadi (Chairperson); 

▪  Ms. Anjue Hirachund  

▪  Ms. Thato Tsautse; 

▪  Ms. Gerdileen Taylor; 

▪  Adv. Gugu Thimane; 

▪  Mr. Lindelwe Mabandla;  

▪  Mr. Aubrey Ngcobo; 

▪  Mr. Andile Mahlalutye; 

▪ Mr. Mahesh Fakir (Member Ex-Officio - Chief Execu�ve Officer).

“Minister of Transport, Dr. Blade Nzimande with Ports Regulator Member 
Mr. Andile Mahlalutye and CEO of Ports Regulator, Mr. Mahesh Fakir”



 

 Mr. Thaba Mufamadi 

Chairperson 

Mr. Aubrey Ngcobo 

Audit Commi�ee 

Mr. Andile Mahlalutye 

Audit Commi�ee 

Prof. Didibhuku Thawala 

Regulatory Commi�ee 

Ms. Thato Tsautse 

Regulatory Commi�ee 

(Chairperson)

Mr. Riad Khan 

Regulatory Commi�ee 

Mr. Lindelwe Mabandla 

Human Resource Commi�ee 

 

Ms. Anjue Hirachund 

HR Commi�ee Chairperson 

Ms. Gerdileen Taylor 

Regulatory Commi�ee 

Adv. Gugu Thimane 

Human Resource Commi�ee 

 

Mahesh Fakir 

CEO & Accoun�ng Officer 
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4. Key Ac�vi�es and Outputs in the Mandate Areas of the Ports Regulator: 

4.1. Administra�on 

Sec�on 31 (1)(a) of the Act states that: ‘The Regulator consists of a chairperson and a minimum of six 

and a maximum of twelve other members appointed by the Minster for a period of up to five years’. 

The term of office for the current Regulator members will expire on 31 Augusy 2018 .  

The Regulator Members worked �relessly to grasp the business processes of the Regulator even 

further especially on technical issues rels�ng to Tribunal and Economic Regula�on , as well as to ensure 

delivery of the Performance Agreement and the Annual Performance Plan (APP). Administra�vely, the 

Secretariat has developed annually reviewed policies and procedures covering all areas of 

administra�on and support. Further, strategies and frameworks have been updated in order to guide 

business processes with regards to the finance, human resource, informa�on technology, and risk 

management func�ons of the en�ty. The constant maintenance in terms of compliance and reviews 

has resulted in a system of strong internal controls and adequate governance prac�ces ensuring 

minimal (if any) instances of non-compliance by the Regulator. 

The Regulator’s administra�on was impacted by the resigna�on and end of contract for two Regulator 

members during the financial year. This presented some difficulty on availability of Members as 

regards mee�ng quorum as well as on con�nuity of Tribunal Members for those tribunals where the 

Members leaving were part of the tribunal. 

4.1.1. Financial Management 

Sec�on 42 (1) of the Act makes provison for the Regulator’s funding. According to the Act, the funds 

of the Regulator consist of: (a) Money appropriated by Parliament; (b) interest on investments; and 

(c) fees charged for the filing of complaints or appeals with the Regulator. However, as evidenced in 

the financials of previous years, these monies are not always adequate for the opera�ons of the 

Regulator.  

As a result, several projects were previously put on hold un�l addi�onal funding was received. In an 

a�empt to mi�gate this issue, a new dra� funding model was prepared, aimed at reducing the burden 

on the fiscus by proposing that a small regulatory fee be charged to the regulated en�ty.  

A number of alternate op�ons were presented to the Shareholding Minister at the previous Annual 

General Mee�ng (‘AGM’) and were further presented to the Por�olio Commi�ee on Transport. 

However, implementa�on of the funding model will require amendments to the Act and it is 

understood that such a process may take a considerable amount of �me. Therefore, the Department 

of Transport has priori�sed the amendments in the 2018/19 business plan in order to monitor and 

track progress on the amendments process. This has also been discussed at PortFolio Commi�ee level.  

Measures were put in place during theMTEF budget process to request further baseline funding to 

the Regulator in order to ensure con�nued sustainability.  

During the 2018 Medium-Term Expenditure Framework (‘MTEF’) budget process, there was no 

baseline funding that was further advanced to the Regulator. This resulted in great cost pressures as 

the budget received from the fiscus dropped by over 6 million rands from the previous year. This was 

managed but s�ll resulted in some over expenditure by the en�ty for the 2017/18 financial year. It 

must be noted that approval was obtained from Na�onal Treasury to keep retain surplus reserves and 

u�lise them. 

The Figure below indicates the revenue posi�on for the past six financial years.    
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Figure 1: Revenue Generated by the Regulator 

 

The Table below indicates the revenue types  generated during the year and the previous year. 

Table 1: Income Classifica�on for the Regulator 

Item 2017/2018                    R (000) 2016/2017                 R (000) 

Department of Transport 
(transfers) 

22 489 28 561 

Interest income 960 957 

Complaints and Appeals 6 7 

Sundry Income 95 - 

Profit/(Loss) on disposal of asset 14 (27) 

Total  23 564 29 498 

The Regulator has applied all possible measures to ensure that the expenditure is within the approved 

budget in order to avoid over expenditure on the total budget. Table two below, illustrates the 

expenditure pa�ern of the Regulator for the past six financial years. The observa�ons and concerns 

made by the new Regulator Members were communicated to the the Minister of Transport; the 

Members noted that the situaton may adversely impact on the delivery of the APP and the 

Performance Agreement. The Members concerns were coupled with the request to revise the baseline 

alloca�on.  

As can be seen from Table two, once off funding amounts of R10m were allocated in 2015/16 and 

2016/17, which whilst useful to the organisa�on, did not facilitate the sustainable appointment of 

addi�onal staff much needed to capacitate the Regulator and fill unfunded vacancies on the 

organogram. The once-off funding further results in a significant drop in funding levels for the 2017/18 

year as compared to 2016/17 despite the  baseline increases of R3m, R5m, and R10m as can be

seen from Table 3. Thus it is  impera�ve that the Department of Transport increase the baseline for 
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the next medium-term period and enact the necessary amendments to the Na�onal Ports Act to 

enable self funding of the Regulator as per its new funding model.  

Table 2: Expenditure vs. Budget 

The Table below indicates the budget for the MTEF period. 

Table 3: Medium-Term Expenditure Framework Budget 
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4.1.2. Human Resource Management 

The Ports Regulator has yet again delivered on its mandate with very limited resources especially in 

terms of human capital and finances. The achievement of 100% of all KPI’s on the Annual Performance 

Plan (APP) indicated the commitment and dedica�on of both the Secretariat and the Regulator 

members. The year had its challenges which included among other things resigna�ons of three employees 

from the Legal department, but the APP targets were s�ll met regardless. This demonstrated the 

culture of synergy amongst the Secretariat with the sole aim to deliver a world class economic 

regula�on to the domes�c and internal�onal markets.   

The Human Resource Strategy developed by the organisa�on, sets out the basic principles in which 

the vision and mission of human resources is iden�fied. The Strategy aims to guide the management 

of employees, the development of in-house skills, the management of employee-related risks, as well 

as the ongoing prac�ce of increasing employee sa�sfac�on and well-being within the workplace. The 

Secretariat developed a proposed new organogram for the organisa�on, the new organogram aims to 

expand all departments in order to deliver a more effec�ve and efficient economic regula�on to the 

Mari�me Industry. The new organogram will pave way for the founda�on of the Single Transport 

Economic Regulator (STER).   

Furthermore, the Regulator believes in inves�ng into the training and development of staff and the 

Regulator Members. Skills development and training is aimed at enhancing employee’s abilities in 

order to achieve self growth and job efficiency. This was further indicated by, for the first �me, 

registra�on with Transport Educa�on Training Authority (TETA), following which the WSP will be 

submi�ed every year in April and some financial as sistance can then be sourced for further training 

and development of the secretariat and Regulator members.  

The Regulator has managed to balance its employment equity status, as at 31 March 2018, in 

accordance with its Employment Equity Plan. This was achieved through the diversifica�on of the 

work-force to include all work-groups. This is done as required by the Employment Equity legisla�on 

and the Employment Equity report lodged with the Department of Labour. 

The Regulator has, furthermore, ensured that all funded vacant posts were filled. However, it must be 

noted that as at 31 March 2018,  there are eight posts not funded on the organogram and have not 

 been  filled, and can only progressively be realised with greater levels of baseline funding . 

Table 4: Employment Equity Breakdown 

2017/2018 Employment Equity Breakdown of Staff: 

Category 
Black 

Female 
Black 
Male 

White 
Female 

White 
Male 

Category 
Total 

Technical & 
Managerial 

53.33% 40.00% 0.00% 6.67% 78.95% 

Support & 
Interns 

100% 0% 0% 0.0% 21.05% 

Total 100% 
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Category:  

Black Male 31.58% 31.48% 

Black Female 63.16% 58.00% 

White Male 5.26% 5.26% 

White Female 0.00% 5.26% 

Total 100% 100% 

Table 6: Execu�ve management earnings for the financial year 2017/18 

Name 
Remunera�on  

 R (000) 

Performance 
Bonus 

 R (000) 

Ac�ng 
allowance  

R (000) 

Leave Pay 
R (000) 

Total R (000) 

Mr. Mahesh 
Fakir 
Chief Execu�ve 
Officer 

2 604 362 0 0 2 966 

Ms. M Damons 
Execu�ve 
Manager: Legal  

1 248 210 0 0 1 458 

Mr. Thokozani 
Mhlongo 
Chief Financial 
Officer 

1 240 229 0 0 1 469 

Total 5 092 801 0 0 5 893 

Table 5: Employment Equity Sta�s�cs 

Employment Equity Sta�s�cs 2017/2018 2016/2017 
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4.1.3. Supply Chain Management 

The Regulator accelerated on its mandate in terms of delivery of services to the port’s stakeholders. 

There were no tenders  were issued during the financial year. There have been no instances of 

fruitless, wasteful, unauthorised expenditure iden�fied during the financial year. This 

of con�nued compliance with legisla�on governing the SCM prac�ces and good internal controls 

  

Table 7: Percentage of B-BBEE of Procurement  

B-BBEE as a percentage of 

Procurement category: 
2017/2018 2016/2017 

Discre�onary Expenditure 88.45% 98.00% 

Total Expenditure 48.00% 45.00% 

4.2. Governance and Compliance

The Members of the Regulator are tasked with implemen�ng the mission, vision, and strategies of the 

organisa�on determined in line with government’s strategic objec�ves , in order to fulfil its core 

mandate, as ar�culated in Sec�on 30. An important objec�ve of the Regulator was to strengthen the 

governance and compliance of the Regulator. In light of audit outcomes, one can confidently state 

that the Regulator has achieved a desirable posi�on as required by legisla�on to achieve a fully 

compliant governance regime. This was mainly influenced by the op�misa�on of limited resources, 

and the commitment of both Members and management to ensure overall good governance and 

compliance with its legisla�ve framework.  

In the 2016/17 financial year, the Members of the Regulator, through the Audi t and  Commi�ee have 

ins�tuted quarterly governance repor�ng as well as a ‘hands on’ approach to risk management. The 

issues that were raised by the Auditor-General as well as the Internal Auditors as non-compliance 

items were systema�cally addressed resul�ng in the organisa�on obtaining a ‘clean audit opinion’.  

In light of the fact that the Regulator is a Schedule 3A public en�ty in terms of the Public Finance 

Management Act (PFMA), together with the King III Code  and now the King IV Code on Governance, 

the duty placed on the Regulator Members and the CEO is to be accountable, responsible, transparent 

and to act with integrity in the best interests of the organisa�on. 

The Members of the Regulator were appointed by the Minister of Transport for a three year term 

commencing on 01 September 2015. In terms of the PFMA, as well as the King III and the latest King 

IV Code on Governance which applies to all public en��es, the Members of the Regulator are 

mandated with two main func�ons: Firstly, they are responsible for determining the organisa�on’s 

strategic direc�on (and consequently its ul�mate performance), and secondly, they are responsible 

for the control of the organisa�on through its various sub-commi�ees, and the other assurance 

providers in the form of both internal and external auditors. Management’s role is to execute strategic 

decisions made by the Regulator and implement the controls across the organisa�on effec�vely and 

in accordance with the law and the legi�mate interests and expecta�ons of its stakeholders. 

From a governance compliance perspec�ve, the Regulator has achieved a fully compliant posi�on with 

three effec�ve sub-commi�ees, each with specific Terms of Reference and a Code of Conduct. The 

was evidence of 
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Regulator and its sub-commi�ees meet quarterly to ensure their obliga�ons are met and the targets 

of the organisa�on achieved, as well as to ensure that the risks faced by the organisa�on in their 

various spheres are addressed.   

It can be confidently stated that the Members have discharged their du�es in terms of ensuring that 

all their delibera�ons, decisions, and ac�ons were based on the four founda�onal principles of good 

governance. 

Alignment to King III: 

The Table below reflects the areas where the Regulator governance prac�ces comply with the 

provisions contained in the King III Code on Governance as well as the PFMA. 

Table 8: Alignment with King III 

King III Ref. King III Principle 
Par�ally

Applied/Not
Applied 

Commentary 

CHAPTER 1 – ETHICAL LEADERSHIP AND CORPORATE CITIZENSHIP 

Principle 1.1 The Regulator Members 
(Directors) of the public en�ty 
provide effec�ve leadership 
based on ethical founda�on. 

Applied The Regulator confirms its 
commitment to the highest 
standards of corporate 
governance. The Regulator 
Charter and Code of Conduct 
adopted by the Regulator sets the 
ethical founda�on for how the 
en�ty operates. 

Principle 1.2  The Regulator ensures that the 
en�ty is and is seen to be a 
responsible corporate ci�zen. 

Applied This is achieved through the 
Regulator Charter and the Code of 
Conduct, which sets the policy 
framework and through specific 
opera�onal and corporate office 
structures, more fully described in 
the Audit and Risk report. 

Principle 1.3 & 
Principle 2.3 

The Regulator ensures that the 
en�ty’s ethics are managed 
effec�vely, and provides 
effec�ve leadership based on 
an ethical founda�on. 

Applied Through the Code of Conduct, the 
Regulator is responsible for 
ensuring that the en�ty protects, 
enhances and contributes to the 
wellbeing of the economy, society 
and the environment. 

CHAPTER 2 – BOARDS AND DIRECTORS 

Principle 2.1 The Regulator acts as the board 
for the organisa�on and is the 
custodian of corporate 
governance for the en�ty. 

Applied The Regulator ensures that the 
organisa�on applies the 
governance principles contained 
in King III and con�nues to further 
entrench and strengthen 
recommended prac�ces through 
the organisa�on’s governance 
structures, systems, processes and 
procedures. 

Principle 2.2 The Regulator provides 
effec�ve strategic leadership, 
and appreciates that strategy, 

Applied The Regulator, as a whole and 
through its Commi�ees, approves 
and monitors the implementa�on 
of the Strategy and Annual 
Performance Plan of the en�ty, 
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King III Ref. King III Principle 
Par�ally 

Applied/Not 
Applied 

Commentary 

risk, performance and 
sustainability are inseparable. 

sets objec�ves, reviews key risks, 
evaluates performance against the 
background of economic, global 
and social issues relevant to the 
en�ty. 

Principle 2.5 The Regulator ensures that the 
en�ty’s ethics are managed 
effec�vely. 

Par�ally 
Applied 

Through the Regulator’s Code of 
Conduct. However the 
organisa�on does not have a 
separate code of business ethics.  

Principle 2.6 The Regulator has ensured that 
the en�ty has an effec�ve and 
independent audit commi�ee. 

Applied The Regulator Charter and Audit 
and Risk Commi�ee Terms of 
Reference provide for the 
establishment of an Audit and Risk 
Commi�ee. The effec�veness of 
the Commi�ee is evaluated 
annually by the Members. The 
Auditor General oversees that this 
is complied with. 

Principle 2.7 The Regulator is responsible for 
the governance of risk. 

Applied In terms of the Regulator Charter, 
the Regulator is responsible for 
the governance of risk and the 
Audit and Risk Commi�ee assists 
the Regulator with this 
responsibility. 

Principle 2.8 The Regulator is responsible for 
Informa�on Technology (IT) 
governance. 

Applied The IT Governance Framework, 
including processes, procedures 
and structures, was adopted by 
the Regulator which delegates 
implementa�on to management. 
In terms of the Regulator Charter 
and the Audit and Risk Commi�ee 
Terms of Reference, the Audit and 
Risk Commi�ee assists the 
Regulator with informa�on 
technology governance. 

Principle 2.9 The Regulator ensures that the 
en�ty complies with applicable 
laws and considers adherence 
to non-binding rules, codes and 
standards. 

Applied The Legisla�ve Framework 
approved by the Regulator sets 
out the requirement of legal 
compliance and provides for the 
en�ty to develop and implement 
policy. The en�ty has a Legal and 
Regulatory Compliance 
department, which updates and 
ensure the implementa�on of the 
framework. Implementa�on will 
begin to be monitored by the 
Management Risk Commi�ee and 
reported on to the Audit 
Commi�ee.  
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King III Ref. King III Principle 
Par�ally 

Applied/Not 
Applied 

Commentary 

Principle 2.10 The Regulator should ensure 
that there is an effec�ve risk-
based internal audit. 

Applied The organisa�on has an internal 
audit func�on which was provided 
by Deloi�e in the 2015/16 
financial year. The Internal Audit 
Charter requires the performance 
of risk based internal audits. 

Principle 2.11 The Regulator should 
appreciate that stakeholder’ 
percep�ons affect the en�ty’s 
reputa�on. 

Applied The en�ty engages its 
stakeholders on mul�ple levels 
and this allows the en�ty to 
manage issues effec�vely and 
�meously and reduces the 
likelihood of reputa�onal risks. 
Stakeholder engagements are a 
standing item in the Management 
Report to the Regulator at each 
mee�ng.  

Principle 2.12 The Regulator should ensure 
the integrity of the en�ty’s 
annual/integrated report. 

Applied With the assistance of 
independent assurers such as EY 
and the internal auditors, the 
Audit and Risk Commi�ee and 
other Regulator Commi�ees 
review and evaluate the Annual 
Reports prior to recommenda�on 
for adop�on by the Regulator.  

Principle 2.13 The Regulator reports on the 
effec�veness of the en�ty’s 
internal controls. 

Applied The internal auditor submits 
formal reports to the Audit and 
Risk Commi�ee quarterly. The 
Members’ report in the Integrated 
Annual Report, includes the Audit 
and Risk Committee’s 
confirma�on of having received 
the internal auditor’s wri�en 
assessment of the effec�veness of 
the Company’s systems of internal 
controls. 

Principle 2.14 The Regulator and its Members 
should act in the best interests 
of the public en�ty. 

Applied Members are mindful of their 
fiduciary du�es and their duty to 
act in accordance with applicable 
legisla�on. Records of Members’ 
financial interests are kept and 
updated on an annual basis. The 
Regulator as a whole acts as a 
steward of the en�ty and each 
Member acts with independence 
of mind in the best interests of the 
en�ty and its stakeholders. In its 
delibera�ons, decisions and 
ac�ons, the Regulator is sensi�ve 
to the legi�mate interests and 
expecta�ons of its stakeholders.  

Principle 2.16 The Minister (in terms of the 
Act, has elected a Chairperson 

Applied The en�ty has an Execu�ve 
Chairperson as recommended by 
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King III Ref. King III Principle 
Par�ally 

Applied/Not 
Applied 

Commentary 

of the Regulator who is an 
independent non-execu�ve 
director. The CEO of the en�ty 
does not also fulfil the role of 
chairperson of the Regulator.  

King III. In terms of the Regulator 
Charter, the roles of the Execu�ve 
Chairperson and Chief Execu�ve 
Officer are separate and clearly 
defined. 

Principle 2.17 The Regulator has a framework 
for the delega�on of authority 
which is updated annually. 

Par�ally 
Applied 

While retaining overall 
accountability and subject to 
ma�ers reserved to itself, the 
Regulator has delegated authority 
to the CEO, other Execu�ve 
Managers  to run the day-to-day 
affairs of the en�ty subject to an 
approval framework. However, 
this has been updated on a needs 
basis rather than annually and is 
to be updated in 2018/19. 

Principle 2.18 The Regulator comprises of a 
majority of non-execu�ve 
members who are 
independent. 

Applied The Regulator had six non-
execu�ve Members up un�l 31 
August 2015. A new Regulator was 
appointed effec�ve 01 September 
2015 consis�ng of 11 members.  

Principle 2.19 Members are appointed 
through a formal process. 

Applied To ensure a rigorous and 
transparent process, any new 
appointment of a Regulator 
Member is considered by the 
Minister of Transport in 
accordance with the Act based on 
a call for nomina�ons. The 
selec�on process involves 
considering the exis�ng balance of 
skills and experience on the 
Regulator and a con�nual process 
of assessing the needs of the 
organisa�on. 

Principle 2.20 The induc�on of and ongoing 
training, as well as the 
development of directors are 
conducted through a formal 
process. 

Applied A formal induc�on programme is 
available for new Members, 
including background material and 
mee�ngs with senior execu�ves. 
All Members are invited on site 
visits and to the annual Regulator 
(strategy mee�ng) with senior 
management. Ongoing training 
includes workshops presented by 
external advisors and addi�onal 
training is facilitated as required. 

Principle 2.21 The Regulator is assisted by a 
competent, suitably qualified 
and experienced Company 
Secretary. The Company 
Secretary is duly appointed by 
the Regulator in accordance 

Applied The Company Secretary is duly 
appointed by the Regulator in 
accordance with the Companies 
Act and the JSE Lis�ngs 
Requirements and is evaluated 
annually. The Regulator is sa�sfied 
that the Company Secretary is 
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King III Ref. King III Principle 
Par�ally 

Applied/Not 
Applied 

Commentary 

with the en�ty’s recruitment 
policies. 

properly qualified and 
experienced to competently carry 
out the du�es and responsibili�es 
of a Company Secretary. 

 

 

Principle 2.22 The evalua�on of the 
Regulator, its commi�ees , is 
performed every year. 

Applied The performance of the Regulator 
as a whole and the Regulator 
Commi�ees individually is 
evaluated annually. 

Principle 2.23 The Regulator delegates certain 
func�ons to well-structured 
commi�ees without abdica�ng 
its own responsibili�es. 

Applied The Regulator has three 
Commi�ees that assist it in 
discharging its du�es and 
responsibili�es. These 
Commi�ees operate in 
accordance with wri�en terms of 
reference approved by the 
Regulator and reviewed annually. 

Principle 2.26 The Regulator has disclosed the 
remunera�on of each 
individual Member and 
prescribed officer.  

Applied The remunera�on of Members is 
included in the Members’ 
Remunera�on report contained in 
the Annual Report. 

 

CHAPTER 3 -  AUDIT COMMITTEES 

Principle 3.1 The Regulator has ensured that 
the en�ty has an effec�ve and 
independent audit commi�ee. 

Applied  The Regulator Charter and Audit 
and Risk Commi�ee Terms of 
Reference provide for the 
establishment of an Audit and Risk 
Commi�ee. The effec�veness of 
the Commi�ee is evaluated 
annually by the Members, 
assessed by internal auditors who 
assist the Commi�ee in complying 
with its Terms of Reference.  

Principle 3.2 Audit Commi�ee Members are 
suitably skilled and 
experienced.  

Applied. All Members of the Audit and Risk 
Commi�ee are independent non-
execu�ve Members, who sit as 
Members of other Audit 
Commi�ees and suitably skilled to 
fulfil the mandate of the 
commi�ee. 

Principle 3.3 The Audit Commi�ee is chaired 
by an independent non-
execu�ve Member. 

Applied The Regulator has appointed a 
suitably qualified Independent 
Non-execu�ve Director to chair 
the Audit and Risk Commi�ee. 

Principle 3.4 The Audit Commi�ee oversees 
annual repor�ng. 

Applied The Audit and Risk Commi�ee has 
oversight over the prepara�on of 
the Annual Report including the 
annual financial statements and 
sustainability informa�on, and 
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King III Ref. King III Principle 
Par�ally 

Applied/Not 
Applied 

Commentary 

recommends the approval of the 
Annual Report to the Regulator.  

Principle 3.5 The Audit Commi�ee has 
ensured that a combined 
assurance model has been 
applied which provides a co-
ordinated approach to all 
assurance ac�vi�es. 

Applied The en�ty has implemented a 
combined assurance model with 
the assistance of Deloi�e as the 
2015/16 internal auditors and the 
Auditor General as the external 
auditors whose input and input is 
monitored by the Audit and Risk 
Commi�ee. 

Principle 3.7. The Audit Commi�ee is 
responsible for overseeing the 
internal audit process. 

Applied The Audit and Risk Commi�ee is 
responsible for overseeing the 
internal audit func�on performed 
by Deloi�e in the 2015/16 
financial year, including the 
approval of the annual plan and 
budget. The internal auditor 
reports to the Audit and Risk 
Commi�ee quarterly in terms of 
the Internal Audit Charter. The 
head of internal audit reports 
directly to the Commi�ee 
Chairperson. 

Principle 3.8 The Audit Commi�ee is an 
integral component of the risk 
management process. 

Applied The Audit and Risk Commi�ee is 
responsible for overseeing risk 
management. Management 
reports to the Audit and Risk 
Commi�ee quarterly on risk 
ma�ers and processes.  

Principle 3.10 The Audit Commi�ee reports 
to the Regulator and the 
Shareholders as to how it has 
discharged its du�es. 

Applied The Audit and Risk Commi�ee 
reports to the Regulator at each 
Regulator mee�ng. A report to 
shareholders on how the 
Commi�ee discharged its du�es is 
included in the Audit and Risk 
Commi�ee Report in the Annual 
Report. 

CHAPTER 4 – THE GOVERNANCE OF RISK 

Principle 4.1 The Regulator is responsible for 
the governance of risk. 

Applied In terms of the Regulator Charter, 
the Regulator is responsible for 
the governance of risk and the 
Audit and Risk Commi�ee assists 
the Regulator with this 
responsibility. 

Principle 4.4 The Regulator has delegated to 
management the responsibility 
to design, implement and 
monitor the risk management 
plan. 

Applied The Management Risk Commi�ee 
reports quarterly to the Audit and 
Risk Commi�ee in terms of the 
Risk Management Plan approved 
annually by the Audit and Risk 
Commi�ee. In terms of the Audit 
and Risk Commi�ee Terms of 
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King III Ref. King III Principle 
Par�ally 

Applied/Not 
Applied 

Commentary 

Reference, management designs, 
implements and monitors the plan 
and is accountable for embedding 
the risk management process in 
the business. 

Principle 4.5 
and 4.7 

The Regulator must ensure that 
risk assessments are performed 
on a con�nual basis. 

Applied Risk Assessments performed 
annually. Risk is addressed in 
terms of the risk plan and 
implementa�on of controls 
monitored by management. 

Principle 4.9 The Regulator receives 
assurance regarding the 
effec�veness of the risk 
management process. 

Applied The internal audit func�on 
provides assurance to the Audit 
and Risk Commi�ee and the 
Regulator regarding the efficacy of 
the risk management process. 

CHAPTER 5 – IT GOVERNANCE 

Principle 5.1 The Regulator is responsible for 
IT governance. 

Applied The IT Governance Framework, 
including processes, procedures 
and structures, was adopted by 
the Regulator which delegates 
implementa�on to management. 
In terms of the Regulator Charter 
and the Audit and Risk Commi�ee 
Terms of Reference, the Audit and 
Risk Commi�ee assists the 
Regulator with informa�on 
technology governance. 

Principle 5.2. IT has been aligned with the 
performance and sustainability 
objec�ves of the en�ty. 

Applied The IT Governance Framework, 
including the informa�on 
technology strategy and 
procedures, ensure alignment 
with the performance and 
sustainability of the en�ty. 

Principle 5.4 The Regulator monitors and 
evaluates significant IT 
investments and expenditure. 

Applied The framework includes the 
management of informa�on 
assets and expenditure. There is a 
capital approval process in place 
and a specific approval process is 
followed for disposals. 

Principle 5.6 The Regulator ensures that 
informa�on assets are 
managed effec�vely. 

Applied The IT governance Strategy 
delegates the implementa�on 
thereof to management, who 
reports thereon to the Regulator 
where appropriate.  

CHAPTER 6 – COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, CODES, RULES AND STANDARDS 

Principle 6.1 The Regulator ensures that the 
en�ty complies with applicable 
laws and considers adherence 
to non-binding rules, codes and 
standards. 

Applied The en�ty has a Legal and 
Regulatory Compliance division 
which has developed the legal and 
regulatory universe applicable to 
the Regulator. Implementa�on of 
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King III Ref. King III Principle Applied/Not 
Applied 

Commentary 

the framework is monitored by 
the Audit and Risk Commi�ee.  

Principle 6.2. The Regulator and each 
individual Member has a 
working understanding of the 
effect of applicable laws, rules, 
codes and standards on the 
organisa�on and its business. 

Par�ally 
applied 

On-going Regulatory training is 
provided. Updates in applicable 
laws, rules and codes are to be 
included on the agendas of 
Regulator and Sub-commi�ee 
mee�ngs. 

Principle 6.3. Compliance risk should form an 
integral part of the en�ty’s risk 
management process. 

Applied The risk of non-compliance forms 
part of the opera�onal risk 
assessments and compliance 
assessments are performed. 
Annually by the legal division. The 
risk of non-compliance is included 
on the Principal Risk Register.  

CHAPTER 7 – INTERNAL AUDIT 

Principle 7.1. The Regulator should ensure 
that there is an effec�ve risk 
based internal audit. 

Applied The Internal Audit Charter 
requires the performance of risk 
based internal audits. 

Principle 7.2. Internal Audit should follow a 
risk based approach to its plan. 

Applied The risk based internal audit plan 
is approved annually by the Audit 
and Risk Commi�ee. 

Principle 7.3. Internal Audit should provide a 
wri�en assessment of the 
effec�veness of the en�ty’s 
system of internal controls and 
risk management. 

Applied The internal auditor submits 
formal reports to the Audit and 
Risk Commi�ee quarterly. On an 
annual basis (in the Annual 
Report), the Audit and Risk 
Commi�ee confirms having 
received the internal auditor’s 
wri�en assessment of the 
effec�veness of the en�ty’s 
systems of internal controls and 
risk management. 

Principle 7.5. Internal Audit should be 
strategically posi�oned to 
achieve its objec�ves. 

Applied The Chief Audit Execu�ve reports 
directly to the Chairperson of the 
Audit Commi�ee and is invited to 
a�end all Audit Commi�ee 
mee�ngs.  

CHAPTERS 8 & 9 – STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIPS AND INTEGRATED REPORTING AND DISCLOSURE 

Principle 8.1. & 
8.2 

The Regulator must take into 
considera�on stakeholder 
percep�ons that affect the 
organisa�on’s reputa�on and 
delegate to management the 
authority to deal with these 
rela�onships. 

Applied The en�ty engages its 
stakeholders on mul�ple levels 
and this allows the en�ty to 
manage issues effec�vely and 
�meously and reduces the 
likelihood of reputa�onal risks. 
Stakeholder engagement is a 
standing Regulator agenda item.  

Principle 9.1 The Regulator should ensure 
the integrity of the en�ty’s 
annual report. 

Applied With the assistance of the Auditor 
General and the Audit and Risk 
Commi�ee and other sub-
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King III Ref. King III Principle 
Par�ally 

Applied/Not 
Applied 

Commentary 

commi�ees who review and 
evaluate the Annual Report prior 
to recommenda�on for adop�on 
by the Regulator. 

Principle 9.2. Sustainability repor�ng and 
disclosure should be integrated 
with the en�ty’s financial 
repor�ng. 

Not applied The organisa�on is s�ll fairly new 
and is progressing towards 
sustainability repor�ng. 

4.2.1. Compliance Monitoring of the Na�onal Ports Authority (NPA): 

The Compliance func�on of the organisa�on fulfils two key roles: Firstly, to ensure that the NPA 

complies with the Act and its broader legisla�ve framework where it impacts on its mandate in terms 

of Sec�on 11; and secondly to ensure and advise on ma�ers of internal compliance by the Regulator 

with its own legisla�ve framework with its key pieces of legisla�on being the Na�onal Ports Act, the 

Public Finance Management Act, the Labour Rela�ons Act, 66 of 1995, and the Basic Condi�on of 

Employment Act, 75 of 1997, the Promo�on of Access to Informa�on Act, 2 of 2000 as well as the 

Promo�on of Administra�ve Jus�ce Act, 3 of 2000 amongst others. 

The Regulator further managed to make significant progress in its compliance func�on, managing to 

review compliance by the NPA with the Act on a quarterly basis monitoring compliance in all 

commercial ports. The NPA is engaged on an ongoing basis on findings thereon to enable increased 

compliance. This is due to the compliance monitoring approach that the Regulator has adopted which 

means co-ordina�ng compliance across the ports system by working with the regulated en�ty to 

increase compliance. This being a milestone achievement for the organisa�on.  

In the financial year under review, reports were submi�ed on compliance and B -BBEE implementa�on 

in the ports sector, yet another milestone achievement for the organisa�on in terms of relevance and 

usefulness to the sector as well as the strategic objec�ves of Government. 

4.2.2. PRSA Compliance: 

The compliance with all applicable legisla�on, regula�ons, standards and codes is impera�ve to the 

Regulator, and as a result thereof the organisa�on has managed to strengthen its compliance 

structures with the aim of fully complying with the Acts, policies, standards, rules, procedures and 

regula�ons applicable to its opera�on. This process of strengthening compliance has further led to the 

development and approval of a legisla�ve framework, a compliance scorecard, and several policies 

and procedures that will govern the opera�ng ac�vi�es of the organisa�on to achieve its output in 

line with its Strategic and Annual Performance Plan, and which are reviewed annually.  

4.2.3. The Ports Regulator Tribunal:  

The Regulator’s tribunal func�on was effec�vely and efficiently  run  in the year under review. No new 

ma�ers proceeded to hearing stage, however review li�ga�on was a focus area.   

Whilst previous years had focused on elimina�ng a backlog in dealing with exis�ng ma�ers, and has 

largely been successful in dealing with these, some of the Regulator’s decisions were taken to court 

on review. The courts ruled in favour of the Regulator on two important ma�ers; Kuene and Nagel as 

well as recently on the Avedia-Sunrise ma�er. A number of new ma�ers have been forthcoming in 

the year under review and are currently being processed, with Tribunal reesources assigned and 

delibera�ons commenced.  
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4.2.4. Amendments to the Na�onal Ports Act, 12 of 2005: 

Both the issues of funding, as well as the tribunal and compliance monitoring processes of the 

Regulator have been very instrumental in assis�ng with the iden�fica�on of necessary legisla�ve gaps, 

which has in turn enabled progress with the suggested amendments to the Act by the Regulator. The 

Secretariat has engaged extensively with the DoT regarding the ra�onale for the amendments 

proposed, which process is in parallel to the consulta�on regarding the Mari�me Transport Policy. The 

Department, as the custodian of the Act, will be incorpora�ng agreed to amendments into a Dra� 

Amendment Bill for further consulta�on and take this forward through the necessary Cabinet and 

Parliamentary processes. Significant progress has been made in this regard during the year under 

review, and the publica�on of the Transport Regula�on Bill for public comment in February 2018 

emphasises the need for the Ports Regulator to be capacitated urgently, as it is inte nded to form the 

core of the proposed Single Transport Economic Regulator envisaged in the Bill.      

4.3. Economic Regula�on 

The Economic Regula�on Programme had numerous achievements to highlight in the year under 

review and con�nued to expand the level of sophis�ca�on with which economic regula�on is 

implemented in the South African ports system. 

The Regulator published a  number of reports, methodologies and decisions during the year with the 

Asset Valua�on methodology, a key contribu�on to the further sophis�ca�on and ra�onalisa�on of 

tariff se�ng in the South African ports sytem.  

The con�nued implementa�on of the 2017/18 Tariff Methodology resulted in an applica�on by the 

NPA and the subsequent determina�on by the Regulator with a Record of Decision (RoD) published 

on 01 December 2017, contained a below infla�on, average fixed tariff increase of 2.5% for 2018/19 

and indica�ve tariffs for the two subsequent years. It resulted in no changes to the tariffs for  

Containers and vehicles (0%). Shipping lines received a 8.5% tariff increase alligned with the tariff 

trajectory as set out in the Tariff Strategy published in 2015 that aims to correct the inherent cross 

subsidies in the tariff book and all other tariffs increased by a below infla�on 5.4%. 

In order to provide a con�nuous update of the implementa�on of the Tariff Strategy and the changes 

to base tariffs due to changes in port structure, volume forecasts etc, the Regulator published updated 

base rates for the coming financial year in the ROD. These tariffs provide an indica�on of the tariff 

trajectory during the es�mated ten year implementa�on period in current terms. The base rates 

published also, for the fist �me applied to any commodity or handling type not listed in the tariff book 

and a cap was placed on some of the highest tariffs in the system. A significant step towards a truly 

cost reflec�ve tariff book. The publication of cost reflec�ve tariffs in the last three ROD’s takes the 

levels of transparency and methodological tariff development to new heights.  

In addi�on, a need was iden�fied to develop a tool, through the use of port tariffs for the support of 

incen�vizing economic ac�vity which are in line with government objec�ves. The Regulator 

subsequently developed the Port Tariff Incen�ve Programme which is intended to provide a 

mechanism through the use of port tariffs and in turn implement a form of cross -subsidy (which is in 

the public interest) across the port system. The Port Tariff Incen�ve Programme was launched on 04 

December 2017 at the offices of the Department of Transport in Pretoria and public engagements 

held. The first round of applica�ons, for considera�on in the 2019/20 tariff period closed on 28 January 

2018 and the fist applica�on will be considered in the 2018/19 tariff year. 
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With the sixth i�era�on of the Global Port Pricing Report in 2017/18 and a Record of decision on the 

detailed implementa�on of the WEGO published, significant progress are being made in moving closer 

to a cost reflec�ve efficient pricing system. The cleanup of the tariff book will con�nue and the 

implementa�on of the valua�on methodology will ensure not only that the underlying costs of 

providing public infrastructure is appropriate but also incen�vises more efficcient opera�ons as well 

as effec�ve expansion and development of the port system. 

4.4. Industry Development 

The Industry Development sec�on has con�nued to facilitate the Regulator’s consulta�on process 

through a stakeholder engagement programme that focused on our key economic regula�on 

program i.e. the NPA’s tariff applica�on 2017/18  - 2019/20, the Port Tariff Incen�ve Programme (PTIP) 

and the review of the Tariff Methodology for the period 2018/19 and beyond.   

Stakeholder feedback forms administered at the tariff applica�on road shows were analysed and 

trends in port users’ percep�ons of the Regulator were iden�fied. The feedback obtained showed that 

once again, the Regulator scored highly and was therefore considered to be serving its stakeholders 

effec�vely.  

The sec�on par�cipated in the port level structures of the Port Consulta�ve Commi�ees (‘PCCs’) as an 

observer, submi�ng observa�on reports; monitoring reported port performance in rela�on to set 

standards for terminal operators, marine services, rail and road hauliers, as well as consul�ng and 

developing WEGO KPI’s and arranging port oversight visits for the Regulator in the Western Cape and 

KZN regions.  

Research conducted during the year included an analysis of the Authority’s capex projects, analysis of 

the Authority’s TOPS system, and a study of B-BBEE implementa�on in the ports sector. Other research 

included an analysis of port development on the African con�nent in order that South Africa can 

consider its own progress in port development at a strategic level.   

5. Governance Structures: 

5.1.  The Human Resources Commi�ee 

Ms Anjue Hirachund was appointed effec�ve 01 February 2017 as Chairperson of the Commi�ee.  Mr. 

Lindelwe Mabandla, and Advocate Gugulethu Thimane are also Members of the Commi�ee.  

The func�on of the Human Resource and Remunera�on Commi�ee is to ensure control and 

governance of all human resource and remunera�on strategies, procedures, processes and HR 

ac�vi�es inside of the organisa�on. The Commi�ee’s key role is to ensure that the Regulator has in 

place fair and transparent condi�ons of service, benefits for employees, as well as policies and 

procedures so that the human resource related ma�ers of the organisa�on are effec�vely governed 

and executed.  

The Commi�ee further oversees the execu�on of the Human Resource Strategy that supports the 

achievement of the organisa�on’s overall  strategy and APP. An annual review of all policies, 

procedures, and remunera�on structures is conducted by the Commi�ee to ensure that they are both 

relevant and up-to-date in terms of amendments to labour and employment equity legisla�on. Final 

policies, procedures and structures were recommended to the Regulator for approval. 
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The 2017/18 financial year has once again seen growth in the execu�on of the Regulator’s mandate , 

without a significant improvement in human resource capacity, and against a backdrop of a significant 

reduc�on in year-on-year budget. The strategy adopted by the Commi�ee is risk based, thereby 

overseeing and managing the iden�fied human resource risks effec�vely within the stated risk 

appe�te of the organisa�on; in so doing, assis�ng the Regulator execute on its overall responsibility 

for risk management within the Regulator.  

A further milestone achievement for this Commi�ee was the review of HR policies, the development 

of the HR Strategy and proposals towards the enhancement of the regulator’s organogram, the 

development of an employee survey being implemented by the employee wellness service provider, 

as well as monitoring the effec�ve implementa�on of the employee performance management 

system with an integrated incentive scheme.  

The HR Commi�ee has posi�oned the Regulator as a compliant and responsive employer at both 

condi�ons of service and training and development levels, within the limited financial resources 

available. This is evidenced by the number of staff trained and developed, and the resultant advanced 

knowledge and decision products that have become a hallmark of  the work of the Regulator.  

The HR Commi�ee has laid a solid founda�on with the full support of Members of the Secretariat 

working in conjunc�on with the various other sub-commi�ees of the Regulator to ensure the overall 

mandate is achieved. This founda�on will be improved on; therefore, we remain confident in our 

ability to respond to any new developments and provide any necessary guidance to the Regulator. 

 

Ms Anjue Hirachund 
Chairperson 
Human Resources Commi�ee 
 
 

Table 9: HR Commi�ee A�endance 

 
HUMAN RESOURCE COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

 

 11/05/2017 21 /07/2017 10/11/2017 14/12/2017 14/02/2018 

Lindelwe Mabandla ✓   ✓   ✓   ✓   X 

Gugulethu Thimane ✓   ✓   ✓   ✓   ✓   

Anjue Hirachund 
(chairperson) 

✓   ✓   ✓   ✓   ✓   

      

✓   Present 

û  Apology 

R      Resigned 
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5.2. The Regulatory Commi�ee 

The Members of this commi�ee are: Ms. Thato Tsautse (Chairperson as of 01 October 2014), Professor 

Didibhuku Thwala (effec�ve May 2014), Ms. Gerdileen Taylor (effec�ve September 2015), and Mr Riad 

Khan (effec�ve September 2015). Ms. Taylor has since joined the Audit Commi�ee where her 

exper�se as a Chartered Accountant strenghens the oversight role that commi�ee plays.  Prof. 

Thwala’s term came to an end in May 2017, and Mr Khan resigned in August 2017, with Adv. Gugulethu 

Thimane taking his place. The current members of the commi�ee as at 31 March 2018 are therefore 

Ms Tsautse, Ms Taylor and Adv Thimane. 

This Commi�ee is responsible for the oversight of delivery of the Regulator’s obliga�ons arising from 

both the Act and its Regula�ons. Its key ac�vi�es were in the areas of economic regula�on, economic 

research, as well as the hearing of complaints and appeals. Furthermore, this commi�ee is required 

to perform both an oversight func�on as well as a quality control func�on with respect to economic 

regual�on, its regulatory elements, and the tribunal func�on.  

A significant output for the year was the tariff decision that was announced on 01 December 2016 at 

a below infla�on average increase of 2.5%, with tariffs differen�ated by user category in line with the 

Tariff Strategy which aims to rebalance South Afri ca’s port infrastructure tariffs towards more cost 

reflec�ve tariffs.  The published Tariff Strategy sets out a methodological approach for the tariff 

strcuture and its tariff trajectory on a cargo type and user specific level and is effec�ve for a ten y ear 

period.  

In line with the Tariff Strategy, the Ports Regulator of South Africa, in consulta�on with the Na�onal 

Ports Authority, the Department of Trade and Industry, the Department of Transport, and the Na�onal 

Treasury, have developed the Port Tar iff Incen�ve Programme (PTIP) in support of beneficia�on, 

industrialisa�on, and localisa�on, through port tariff regula�on.  

Phase one of the PTIP was the ‘process development’ phase and was executed in consulta�on with various stakeholders and 

departments. Phase two of the PTIP included the development and finalisa�on of the informa�on and 

data requirements, accredita�on criteria, applica�on forms, the verifica�on guidelines, as well as 

other applica�on specifics. The PTIP was launched in December 2017 and the first applica�on was 

received in January by the closing date for processing in the 2019/20 Tariff Applica�on.  

Further, a Record of Decision was published  to incorporate a performance incen�ve system, 

called Weighted Efficiency Gains on Opera�ons  (WEGO), which allows the Ports Authority as a 

regulator of operators, to gain or lose up to 5% profit for up to 10% increase or decline (respec�vely) 

on year on year performance for a basket of measurable indicators that were consulted with the authority

and  across the country.  

A significant achievement has been the development, public consulta�on and publishing of the 

Valua�on Methodology for the Regulatory Asset Base of the NPA. The Regulator concluded that the 

Trended Original Cost (TOC) approach which ensures Financial Capital Maintenance will be the 

preferred valua�on methodology. However, some concerns related to the older assets capitalised 

before 1990 remain, so assets with capitalisa�on dates before 1990 will therefore be treated on the 

basis of the historical cost method, while trea�ng any assets created post 1990 on the basis of the TOC 

approach. 

Other areas of output from the Regulatory Commi�ee included an analysis of the Authority’s capex 

projects, analysis of the Authority’s TOPS system, and a study of B-BBEE implementa�on in the ports 
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sector. Other research included an analysis of port development on the African con�nent as well as 

the sixth itera�on of of the Ports Regulators’ Global Price Benchmarking Comparator Study. 

The oversight of the performance and efficiency benchmarking and monitoring process, the NPA’s 

compliance with the Act in terms of concessions, licences and leases etc., and tribunal processes are 

ongoing ac�vites for the Regulatory Commi�ee. The Commi�ee’s quality control func�on extends to 

include the review of the Industry Development’s projects , as well as that of the Economic Regula�on 

and the Legal Departments.  The Industry Development Department has led the stakeholder 

engagement ac�vi�es of the Regulator, including represta�on at PCC’s, consulta�ons on WEGO KPI’s, 

and the KZN and Western Cape Port visits by the Regulator, amongst others. 

The Regulatory Commi�ee has worked closely with the Legal Department of the Regulator and has 

played a major role in formula�ng and finalising much needed amendments to the Act aimed at 

improving regula�on and capacita�ng the Regulator. 

Ms. Thato Tsautse 

Chairperson 

Regulatory Commi�ee 

Table 10: Regulatory Commi�ee A�endance

 
REGULATORY COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

 

 
16/05/2017 27/07/2017 27/10/2017  15/11/2017  

special 
15/02/2018 

Gugulethu Thimane x ✓   ✓   ✓   ✓   

Thato Tsautse ✓   ✓   ✓   ✓   ✓   

Gerdileen Taylor 
x x Newly appointed 

but not present 
✓   ✓   

Riad Khan ✓   ✓   R R R 

✓   Present 

û  Apology 

R      Resigned 
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5.3. The Audit Commi�ee 

We are pleased to present the Audit Commi�ee report for the financial year ended 31 March 2018 

At financial year end, the Members of this Commi�ee included Mr. Trevor Boltman (Independent Non-

Execu�ve Chairperson), Mr. Andile Mahlalutye, Mr Aubrey Ncobo and Ms. Gerdileen Taylor .  

The Audit Commi�ee has complied with its responsibili�es as s�pulated in Sec�on 77 of the PFMA 

and Treasury Regula�on 3.1. 

The Audit Commi�ee has adopted, with approval from the Regulator, appropriate, formal, Terms of 

Reference as its Audit Commi�ee Charter. 

This Commi�ee Charter is reviewed on an annual basis to ensure its con�nuing relevance and 

effec�veness. The Audit Commi�ee has regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter and has 

discharged all its responsibili�es as contained therein. 

Furthermore, both the Audit Commi�ee and Internal Audit Terms of Reference are reviewed and, 

where required, revised on an annual basis. 

The Commi�ee has met with the Auditor General of South Africa (‘AGSA’), Internal Audit and 

Management separately; all of whom are present at the Commi�ee mee�ngs, with AGSA being 

present at least twice each year. 

The Table below reflects the relevant informa�on on the Audit Commi�ee Members a�endance for 

the 2017/18 year. 

Table 11: Audit Commi�ee A�endance 

 

 

THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROL 

The Audit Commi�ee is of the opinion that, based on the informa�on and explana�ons given by 

management and discussions with AGSA on the results of its audits, the internal accoun�ng controls 

are opera�ng effec�vely.  Thus , ensuring that the financial records may be relied upon for preparing 

the AFS, and that accountability for assets and liabili�es is maintained. 

However, it must be reported that there were incidents where the control system was found to be 

lacking. More informa�on rela�ng to this can be found in the Chief Execu�ve Officer’s report, AGSA’s 

report , and the Annual Financial Statements. 

 
AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

 

 09/05/2017 14/06/2017 

Special  

21/07/2017 24/10/2017 20/11/2017  
Special 

17/02/2018 

Aubrey Ngcobo ✓   ✓   ✓   ✓   ✓   ✓   

Gerdileen Taylor x  ✓   ✓   ✓   ✓   ✓   

Andile Mahlalutye ✓   x  ✓   ✓   ✓   ✓   

Trevor Boltman ✓   ✓   ✓   ✓   ✓   ✓   

✓   Present 

û  Apology 
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The Internal Auditors have conducted audits on certain key opera�ons and processes of the Regulator 

as per the approved Internal Audit Plan during the year ended 31 March 2018. Based on the scope and 

results of their work, and subject to the limita�ons of sampling, and their evalua�on of the key controls 

implemented by management to address the associated risks, it appears that there were some 

instances of control breakdowns. Certain improvements were needed regarding key control ac�vi�es 

in providing reasonable assurance that the risk areas, subject to the review, were being properly 

managed and controlled. Some instances of non-compliance to legisla�on and policies and procedures 

were also reported. 

These have, however, been addressed/are in the process of being addressed through the exis�ng 

levels of management. AGSA, and Internal Audit have expressed confidence that management is 

commi�ed and is taking the necessary remedial ac�on to address the control deficiencies. 

Accordingly, we can report that the system of internal control for the period under review was efficient 

and effec�ve, except for those areas  that were raised by the AGSA. 

IN-YEAR MANAGEMENT AND MONTHLY/QUARTERLY REPORTS 

The Secretariat has submi�ed monthly and quarterly reports to the Audit Commi�ee and the 

Regulator. These reports were discussed and accepted by the Audit Commi�ee and the Regulator. 

EVALUATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (AFS) 

The Audit Commi�ee has reviewed and discussed: 

• The audited AFS to be included in the annual report with the AGSA and the Regulator;  

• The AGSA’s management le�er and audit report, and management’s response thereto; and 

• Reviewed significant adjustments resul�ng from the audit.  

AUDITOR’S REPORT  

The Audit Commi�ee concurs and accepts the conclusions of the external auditor on the AFS and is of 

the opinion that the audited AFS be accepted and read together with the report of the Auditor General.  

CONCLUSION  

In our opinion, based on feedback to Audit Commi�ee mee�ngs, both general and specific controls 

have been iden�fied (with weak areas) for management’s a�en�on. These areas are being address ed 

and this correc�ve process must be ongoing and conclusive to mi�gate the risk of not achieving the 

Regulator’s agreed strategic objec�ves. In our opinion, based on 

feedback at the Audit Commi�ee mee�ngs, the Regulator’s key 

performance indicators are being monitored within the 

environmental and cash flow constraints the Regulator faces. The 

Regulator is achieving in most key performance areas.  

Mr. Trevor Boltman 
Chairperson 
Audit Commi�ee

Ports Regulator Annual Report
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5.4. Company Secretary 

The Company Secretary is the key support of the Regulator and is responsible for compliance and 

governance in all Regulator mee�ngs. Furthermore, the Company Secretary is the contact person for 

the Regulator with respect to such func�ons.  

The main role of a Company Secretary is that of gatekeeper of corporate governance for an 

organisa�on. The Regulator is governed by a Charter and Code of Conduct which provides the 

Members with guidance as to their responsibili�es and du�es and how, in certain conflic�ng 

situa�ons, such du�es should be properly discharged in the best interests of the organisa�on. It is the 

role of the Company Secretary to provide comprehensive and prac�cal support to the Members, the 

Chairperson of the Regulator, and the Chairs of its sub-commi�ees in terms of providing guidance to 

Members with regard to fully observing their du�es, responsibili�es and powers, as well as sourcing 

and/or providing training to new and exis�ng Members on new laws, processes and regula�ons 

relevant to the business of the organisa�on. 

In terms of performance, the Regulator and its Sub-Commi�ees have met quarterly, and had 

addi�onal mee�ngs where circumstances required same, in order to reach strategic decisions in the 

interests of the organisa�on and its sustainability. The ongoing development of Members was a 

specific focus area in order to ensure that Members were kept abreast of local developments in terms 

of their du�es, risk management and corporate governance best prac�ce in terms of the new King IV 

Code becoming effec�ve. The performance of the Regulator and the Audit  Commi�ee is evaluated 

annually, and has been facilitated by the Company Secretary; the process took the form of 

ques�onnaires which were completed by the Members. The evalua�on covered areas such as  the the 

Regulator / commi�ee composi�on, dynamics, effec�veness, experience and knowledge of the 

Members and their rela�onship to Management. The overall report was posi�ve and 

recommenda�ons to improve will be implemented in the ensuing year. Evalua�on of the other 

commi�ees will be phased in. 

Company Secretary 

Ms. Marissa Damons
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Table 12: Regulator Mee�ng a�endance

Name Dates 

 25/05/2017 23/08/2017 23/11/2017 22/02/2018 

Thaba Mufamadi ✓   ✓   ✓   ✓   

Aubrey Ngcobo ✓   ✓   ✓   ✓   

Gerdileen Taylor x ✓   ✓   x 

Andile Mahlalutye ✓   ✓   x ✓   

Lindelwe Mabandla ✓   ✓   ✓   ✓   

Gugulethu Thimane ✓   ✓   ✓   ✓   

Anjue Hirachund ✓   ✓   ✓   ✓   

Thato Tsautse ✓   ✓   ✓   ✓   

Riad Khan        

Didibhuku Thwala Contract ended x x x 

  

Table 13: Annual General Mee�ng a�endance

REGULATOR MEETINGS 

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM) 

  08 September 2017 

1. Mr. T.  Mufamadi ✓  

2. Mr. A.  Ngcobo ✓  

3. Mr. A.  Mahlalutye ✓  

4. Ms. A.  Hirachund ✓  

5. Prof. D. Thwala x 

6. Ms. G. Taylor x 

7. Adv. G. Thimane ✓  

8. Mr. L.  Mabandla ✓  

9. Ms. P. Mazibuko x 

10. Mr. R.  Khan x 

11. Ms. T.  Tsautse ✓  

12 Mr. T.  Boltman x 

x x x x
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Table 14: Regulator Member fees for period 01 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 

Name 
Member Fees 

(R’000) (2017/18) 

Performance 

Bonus 
Leave Pay Total (R’000) 

Mr. T . Mufamadi  121 - - 121 

*Ms. P. Mazibuko 2 - - 2 

Ms. T. Tsautse  198 - - 198 

Mr. A. Ngcobo 143 - - 143 

Mr. A. Mahlalutye 145 - - 145 

Mr. L. Mabandla 96 - - 96 

***Mr. R. Khan 29 - - 29 

**Mr. W. Thwala 19 - - 19 

Adv. G. Thimane 268   268 

Ms. G. Taylor 152   152 

Mrs. A. Hirachund 198   198 

*Ms. P. Mazibuko resigned January 2017 

**Mr. D Thwala’s contract came into an end on 30 May 2017 

   ***Mr. R Khan resigned effec�ve from 31 July 2017 

“Minister of Transport, Dr. Blade Nzimande visit to the Ports Regulator offices in 2018”
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7. Statement of es�mated income and expenditure 

Statement of Es�mated Income and Expenditure 2018/19 

Revenue  

Tax revenue – 

Non-tax revenue – 

Sale of goods and services other than capital assets - 

of which:  

Admin fees – 

Sales by market establishments – 

Other sales – 

Other non-tax revenue 351 

Transfers received 25,619 

Total revenue 25,970 

Expenses  

Current expense 25,970 

Compensa�on of employees  16, 658 

Goods and services  9, 157 

Deprecia�on  155 

Interest, dividends and rent on land – 

Interest – 

Dividends – 

Rent on land – 

Transfers and subsidies – 

Total expenses 25,970 

Surplus / (Deficit) – 
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The Ports Regulator of South Africa 
 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
for the year ended 31 March 2018 

 

  

General Informa�on 

Country of incorpora�on  South Africa 

 

Nature of the business                    Economic Regula�on 

 

Business address                   11th Floor, The Marine Building 

                   22 Dorothy Nyembe Street 

                   Durban 

                   4001 

 

Postal address                  Private Bag X54322 

                 Durban 

                  4000 

Website                  www.portsregulator.org 

Bankers                  Standard Bank Limited 

Auditors                  Auditor-General South Africa  

 

Controlling en�ty                                             Department of Transport 
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The Ports Regulator of South Africa 
 

ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
for the year ended 31 March 2018 

The Regulator Members are responsible for the maintenance of adequate accoun�ng records and 

the prepara�on and integrity of the financial statements and related informa�on. The auditors are 

responsible for repor�ng on the fair presenta�on of the financial statements. The financial 

statements have been prepared in accordance with Generally Recognised Accoun�ng Prac�ce 

(GRAP) issued by the Accoun�ng Standards Board in accordance with Sec�on 91 of the Public 

Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No.1 of 1999)(PFMA). 

The Regulator Members are also responsible for the system of internal financial control.  These are 

designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance as to the reliability of the financial 

statements, and to adequately safeguard, verify and maintain accountability of the assets, and 

prevent and detect misstatements and loss.  Nothing has come to the a�en�on of the membe rs 

to indicate any material breakdown in the func�oning of these controls, procedures and systems 

during the year under review.  

 

 

 Approval  

The financial statements for  the year ended 31 March 2018 set out on pages 60 to 87 were 

approved by the Regulator on 23 May 2018. 

___________________________ 

Mahesh Fakir 

Chief Execu�ve Officer 

_________________________ 

Thaba Mufamadi 

Chairperson of the Regulator 
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 Report of the auditor-general to Parliament on the Ports Regulator
 of South Africa

I have audited the financial statements of the Ports Regulator of South Africa set out on

Opinion

1.
pages 60 to 87 which comprise the statement of financial posi�on as at 31 March 2018.
the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets, cash flow 
the statement of comparison budget with actual informa�on for the year then ended, 
as well as the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accoun�ng policies.

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respect, the2.
financial posi�on of the Ports Regulator of South Africa as at 31 March 2018, and its
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the 
South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accoun�ng Prac�ce (SA Standards of
GRAP) and the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa,
1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA).

Basis for opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with the Interna�onal Standards on Audi�ng (ISAs).3.

My responsibili�es under those standards are further described in the auditor-general’s.
 responsibili�es for the audit of the financial statements sec�on of my report. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for my opinion.

4.

5.

6. The accoun�ng authority is responsible for the prepara�on and fair presenta�on of the 

financial statements in accordance with SA Standards of GRAP and the requirements of 
the PFMA and for such internal control as the accoun�ng authority determines is 
necessary to enable the prepara�on of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the accoun�ng authority is responsible for 7.
assessing the Ports Regulator of South Africa’s ability to con�nue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, ma�ers rela�ng to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accoun�ng unless there is an inten�on either to liquidate the en�ty or cease 
opera�ons, or there is no realis�c alterna�ve but to do so.

 

 

 

 

Responsibilities of accounting authority for the nancial statements

I am independent of the entity in accordance with the International Ethics Standards 
Board for Accounts ‘ Code of ethics for professional accountants (IESBA code) and the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit in South Africa. I have fullled my other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA code. 
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The Ports Regulator of South Africa 
 

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL 
 

 

 Report on the audit of the annual performance report  

Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
statements

8.  My objec�ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
      statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error
      and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a 
      high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
      with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
      arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
      they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
      on the basis of these statements.

9.   A further descrip�on of my responsibili�es for the audit of the financial statement is 
      included in the annexure to the auditor’s report.

Introduction and scope

10. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA)
       and the general no�ce issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report material 
        findings on the reported performance informa�on against predetermined objec�ves for 
        selected objec�ves presented in the annual performance report. I performed procedures  
        to iden�fy findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance. 
 
11. My procedures address the reported performance informa�on, which must be based on 
       the approved performance planning documents of the en�ty. I have not evaluated the 
       completeness and appropriateness of the performance indicators included in the 
       planning documents. My procedures also did not extend to any disclosures or asser�ons 
       rela�ng to planned performance strategies and informa�on in respect of future periods
       that may be included as part of the reported performance informa�on. Accordingly, my 
       finding do not extend to these ma�ers.   
 
12. I evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance informa�on in 
      accordance with the criteria developed from the performance management and 
      repor�ng framework, as defined in the general no�ce, for the following selected 
      objec�ves presented in the annual performance report of the en�ty for the year ended 
      31 March 2018:    
 

Objec�ves Pages in the annual 
performance report

36 to 39      
 

2. Ongoing implemeta�on of Economic regula�on of ports 
(Price, access, ins�tu�onal structure).    
 
4. Monitoring the port industry and its compliance with 
Na�onal Ports Act and other Regulatory instruments to 
ensure access to and compe��on within the port system

5. Opera�ng an effec�ve and efficient tribunal to hear 
complaints and appeals under the Na�onal Ports Act

41 to 42     
 

42
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13. I performed procedures to determine whether the reported performance informa�on was 
      properly presented and whether performance was consistent with the approved 
      performance planning documents. I performed further procedures to determine whether the 
      indicators and related targets were measurable and relevant, and assessed the reliability of the 
      reported performance informa�on to determine whether it was valid, accurate and complete    
 
14. I did not iden�ty any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported 
       performance informa�on for the three selected objec�ves.  

15. In accordance with the PAA and general no�ce issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to 
       report material findings on the compliance of the public en�ty with specific ma�ers in key 
       legisla�on. I performed procedures to iden�fy findings but not to gather evidence to express 
       assurance. 
  
16. I did not raise material findings on compliance with the specific ma�ers in key legisla�on set 
       out in the general no�ce issued in terms of the PAA.   
  

17. The accoun�ng authority is responsible for the other informa�on. The other informa�on 
       comprises the informa�on included in the annual report. The other informa�on does not 
       include the financial statements, the auditor’s report and those selected objec�ve presented
       in the annual performance report that have been specifically reported in this auditor’s report.    
  
18. My opinion on the financial statements and findings on the reported performance informa�on 
      and compliance with legisla�on do not cover the other informa�on and I do not express an 
      audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

19. In connec�on with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other informa�on and, in doing so,
       consider whether the other informa�on is materially inconstent with the financial statements
       and the selected objec�ves presented in the annual performance report, or my knowledge 
       obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. I have nothing to report 
       in this regard. 
  
  

Other Information

Report on the audit of compliance with legislation 
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The Ports Regulator of South Africa 
 

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

20. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, reported
       performance informa�on and compliance with applicable legisla�on; however, my 
       objec�ves was not to express any form of assurance on it.   

Pietermaritzburg 
  
  31 July 2018
  
  

Internal control deciencies

Auditing to build public condence
  
  

21. I did not iden�fy any significant deficiencies in internal control.   
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      Annexure - Audior-general’s responsibility for the audit 

1.  As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, I exercise professional judgement and maintain 
     professional scep�cism throughout my audit of the financial statements, and the procedures 
     performed on reported performance informa�on for selected programmes and on the en�ty’s 
     compliance with respect to the selected subject ma�ers. 

     Financial Statements 

2.  In addi�on to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as described in this auditor’s
      report, I also:

      iden�fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statement whether due to 
      fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
      evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detec�ng 
      a material misstatement resul�ng from fraud is higher than for one resul�ng from error, as fraud may 
      involve collusion, forgery, inten�onal omissions, misrepresenta�ons, or the override of internal control 

      obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
      are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effec�veness
      of the en�ty’s internal control.

       evaluate the appropriateness of accoun�ng policies used and the reasonableness of accoun�ng es�mates 
       and related disclosures made by the accoun�ng authority. 

       conclude on the appropriateness of the accoun�ng authority’s use of the going concern basis of accoun�ng
       in the prepara�on of the financial statements. I also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
       whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or condi�ons that may cast significant doubt on the
       Ports Regulator of South Africa’s ability to con�nue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material 
       uncertainty exists, I am required to draw a�en�on in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
       financial statements about the material uncertainty or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the 
       opinion on the financial statements. My conclusions are based on the informa�on available to me at the 
       date of this author’s report. However, future events or condi�ons may cause a en�ty to cease as a going 
       concern. 

       evaluate the overall presenta�on, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
       disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transac�ons and events in a 
       manner that achieves fair presenta�on

     Communica�on with those charged with governance 

3.   I communicate with the accoun�ng authority regarding, among other ma�ers, the planned scope and �ming
      of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I 
      iden�fy during my audit. 

4.   I also confirm to the accoun�ng authority that I have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
      independence, and communicate all rela�onships and other ma�ers that may reasonably be thought to 
      have a bearing on my independence and, where applicable, related safeguards. 
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 Notes 2018  2017  

  R’000  R'000  

ASSETS      

      

Non-current assets   1 580   1 922  

  Property, plant and equipment 8 1 200  1 523  

  Intangible asset 9 39  58  

  Loans and receivables 10 341  341  

        

Current assets  15 396  15 366  

  Trade and other receivables 11 109  53  

  Cash and cash equivalents  12 15 287  15 313  

        

      

TOTAL ASSETS  16 976  17 288  

      

LIABILITIES      

      

Current liabili�es  1 162  1 050  

  Trade and other payables 13  677   524  

  Provisions   15 485  526  

        

TOTAL LIABILITIES  1 162  1 050  

      

NET ASSETS 

 

     

CAPITAL AND RESERVES      

  Accumulated surplus  15 814  16 238  

      

TOTAL NET ASSETS  15 814  16 238  

      

      

TOTAL NET ASSETS AND LIABILITIES   16 976  17 288  
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Notes 2018  2017  

  R’000  R'000  

REVENUE 

 

     

Revenue from non-exchange transac�ons 2 22 489  28 561  

Government grants and subsidies  22 489  28 561  

      

Revenue from exchange transac�ons 3 101  7  

Sale of goods and rendering of services  6  7  

Other income  95  -  

      

TOTAL REVENUE  22 590  28 568  

      

EXPENDITURE      

Administra�on expenses 

Amor�sa�on and deprecia�on  

5 

8 & 9 

 953 

437 

  1 836 

176 

 

Staff costs 6 13 716  12 191  

Audit fees 

Legal fees  

Opera�ng Lease                                                                                             

27 

28 

14 

319 

499 

1 664 

 320 

398 

1 611 

 

Other opera�ng expenses 

Regulator members’ remunera�on 

7 

17 

5 106 

1 371 

 9 476 

1 860 

 

      

TOTAL EXPENDITURE  24 065  27 868  

 

Finance income                                                                                       

 

OTHER GAINS/ (LOSSES) 

 

Gain / (loss) on disposal of assets 

 

4 

 

          960 

 

 

          14 

  

957 

 

 

(27) 

 

      

SURPLUS/ (DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD  (501)     1 630  
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R'000  

Accumulated 

Surplus 

 

  

Opening balance at 1 April 2016 14 040  

  

Surplus for the year 1 630  

 

Correc�on of prior period error 26 568  

   

Balance on 01 April 2017 

 

Prior year adjustment 26 

16 238 

 

77 

 

Restated Opening balance 16 315  

 

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year 

 

(501) 

 

Closing balance as at 31 March 2018 15 814  
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Note 2018  2017  

 R’000  R'000  

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES      

Receipts  22 590  28 568  

Transfers received 2 22 489    28 561    

Sale of goods and services 3 6  7  

Other income  95  -  

     

Payments  (23 495)  (27 465)  

   Employee cost 6 (13 716)  (12 191)  

   Suppliers and other payments  (9 779)  (15 274)  

     

     

Net cash flows from opera�ons  (905)  1 103  

Interest paid                 -                 -  

Finance income                   960                 957  

     

Net cash flow available from opera�ng ac�vi�es 16 55  2 060  

     

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES      

Acquisi�on of :      

Property, plant and equipment 8 (135)  (584)  

Intangible assets  9 -  -  

Proceeds from De-recogni�on of  Property, plant and 

equipment 

 54  -  

Net cash flows from inves�ng ac�vi�es  (81)  (584)  

     

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (26)  1 476  

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year  15 313  13 838  

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  15 287  15 313  
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Economic Classifica�on Approved 

Budget 

Adjustments Final 

Approved 

Budget 

Actual Variance 

 

 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

Revenue      

Transfers 22 489 0 22 489 22 489 0 

Interest Received 320 0 320 960 640 

Sale of good and services 0 0 0 6 6 

Other income 0  0 95 95 

Reserves 0 1 000 1 000 0 (1 000) 

Gain on disposal 0 0 0 14 14 

 22 809 1 000 23 809 23 564 (245) 

      

Expenses      

Deprecia�on & Amor�sa�on 219 0 219 437 218 

Compensa�on of employees 14 764 (736) 14 028 13 716 312 

Goods & Services 7 826 1 736 9 562 9 912 350 

Loss on disposal of assets 0 0 0 0 0 

 22 809 1 000 23 809 24 065 (256) 

      

Surplus/(Deficit) 0 0 0 (501) (501) 

      

Capital Budget 0 0 0 135 (135) 

 0 0 0 135 (135) 

      

*Please refer to Note 21 of the Annual Financial Statements for detailed variance analysis between budget and actual 

amounts. 
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 Accoun�ng Policies 

1.1 Basis of prepara�on

The annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accoun�ng and 

are in accordance with historical cost conven�on unless specified otherwise.  

These annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Generally 

Recognised Accoun�ng Prac�ce (GRAP), issued by the Accoun�ng Standards Board in 

accordance with Sec�on 91 of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No.1 of 1999) 

(PFMA).  

The principal accoun�ng policies, applied in the prepara�on of these annual financial 

statements, are set out below. These accoun�ng policies are consist ent with those applied in 

the prepara�on of the prior year annual financial statements, unless specified otherwise. 

Details of any changes in the accoun�ng policies are provided in notes. 

When the presenta�on or classifica�on of items in the annual financial statements is 

amended, prior period compara�ve amounts are also reclassified and restated, unless such 

compara�ve reclassifica�on and / or restatement is not required by a Standard of GRAP. The 

nature and reason for such reclassifica�ons and restatements are also disclosed. 

Assets, liabili�es, revenues and expenses have not been offset except when offse�ng is 

required or permi�ed by a Standard of GRAP. 

The accoun�ng policies applied are consistent with those used to present the previous year's 

financial statements, unless explicitly stated.  The details of any changes in accoun�ng policies 

are explained in the relevant policy.  

The cash flow statement has been prepared in accordance with the direct method. 

1.2 Presenta�on currency 

All amounts have been presented in the currency of the South African Rand (R) which is also 

the func�onal currency of the Ports Regulator. 

1.3 Rounding 

Unless otherwise stated all financial figures have been rounded up to the nearest one 

thousand Rand (R’000). 

1.4 Standards, Amendments to standards and interpreta�ons issued but not yet Effec�ve  

   The following Standards of GRAP and / or amendments thereto have been issued by the 

Accoun�ng Standards Board, but will only become effec�ve in future periods or have not 

been given an effec�ve date by the Minister of Finance. The en�ty has not early-adopted any 

1
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of these new Standards or amendments thereto, but has referred to them for guidance in the 

development of accoun�ng policies in accordance with GRAP 3 as read with Direc�ve 5: GRAP 

18 (Segment repor�ng) 

1.5 Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non -current assets that are held for use in the 

produc�on or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for administra�ve purposes and 

are expected to be used during more than one year.  

Items of property, plant and equipment are ini�ally recognised as assets on acquisi�on date 

and are ini�ally recorded at cost where acquired through exchange transac�ons. However, 

when items of property, plant and equipment are acquired through non -exchange 

transac�ons, those items are ini�ally measured at their fair values as at the date of 

acquisi�on. 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other cos ts 

directly a�ributable to bring the asset to the loca�on and condi�on necessary for it to be 

capable of opera�ng in the manner intended by the en�ty. Trade discounts and rebates are 

deducted in arriving at the cost at which the asset is recognised. The cost also includes the 

es�mated costs of dismantling and removing the asset and restoring the site on which it is 

operated. 

Deprecia�on is calculated on the depreciable amount, using the straight-line method over 

the es�mated useful lives of the assets.  Components of assets that are significant in rela�on 

to the whole asset and that have different useful lives are depreciated separately. The 

depreciable amount is determined a�er taking into account an assets’ residual value, where 

applicable for the en�ty 

Office furniture and fi�ngs   - 10 years 

Computer equipment               - 5 years 

Motor vehicles                         - 7 years 

The useful lives of property, plant and equipment and their residual values are reassessed at 

the end of each financial year. Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its 

es�mated recoverable amount, it is wri�en down immediately to its recoverable amount (i.e. 

impairment losses are recognised). The subsequent measurement of PPE is carried out either 

using the cost model. 

Property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when the future economic 

benefits or no service poten�al are expected from its use or disposal. When PPE is 

derecognised, the gain or loss upon de-recogni�on is included in surplus or deficit for the 

period. 
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1.6 Books 

Books consist of library material that is used by the en�ty for the research, legal and economic 

regula�on ac�vi�es. Books are recognised at cost upon acquisi�on. There are subsequent 

measurement that occur every year for each book un�l the book has reached its useful life. 

Subsequent measurement is done using the cost model. Reviews are carried out at the end 

of each financial year. Upon de-recogni�on, the gain/loss is included in the surplus or deficit 

for the period. 

                       Books                                                                       -8 years 

 

1.7 Intangible assets 

An intangible asset is an iden�fiable non-monetary asset without physical substance. The 

en�ty recognises an intangible asset in its Statement of Financial Posi�on only when it is 

probable that the expected future economic benefits or service poten�al that are a�ributable 

to the asset will flow to the en�ty and the cost or fair value of the asset can be measure d 

reliably. 

Intangible assets are ini�ally recognised at cost. 

Where an intangible asset is acquired by the en�ty for no or nominal considera�on (i.e. a 

non-exchange transac�on), the cost is deemed to be equal to the fair value of that asset on 

the date acquired. 

The cost of an intangible asset is amor�sed over the useful life where that useful life is finite. 

The amor�sa�on expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the Statement 

of Financial Performance in the expense category consistent with the func�on of the 

intangible asset. 

Amor�sa�on is charged to write off the cost of intangible assets over their es�mated useful 

lives using the straight-line method.   

 Computer So�ware                   - 5 years  

1.8 Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when: 

� An en�ty has a present obliga�on as a result of a past event; 

� it is probable that an ou�low of resources embodying economic benefits will be required 

to se�le the obliga�on; and 

� a reasonable es�mate can be made of the obliga�on 
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1.9    Leases 

The Ports Regulator is a lessee for the office accommoda�on.  

Assets subject to opera�ng leases, i.e. those leases where substan�ally all of the risks and 

rewards of ownership are not transferred to the lessee through the lease, are not recognised 

in the Statement of Financial Posi�on. The opera�ng lease expense is recognised over the 

course of the lease arrangement.  

Opera�ng lease payments are recognised in the statement of financial performance on a 

straight – line basis over the term of the lease. 

1.10 Financial instruments 

Financial instruments are ini�ally recognised at cost. 

1.10.1 Trade and other receivables 

Trade and other receivables are categorised as financial assets: loans and receivables and are 

ini�ally recognised at fair value and subsequently carried at amor�sed cost. Amor�sed cost 

refers to the ini�al carrying amount, plus interest, less repayments and impairments. 

Amounts that are receivable within 12 months from the repor�ng date are classified as 

current. 

1.10.2 Trade and other payables 

Financial liabili�es consist of trade payables and borrowings. They are categorised as financial 

liabili�es held at amor�sed cost, are ini�ally recognised at fair value and subsequently 

measured at amor�sed cost which is the ini�al carrying amount, less repayments, plus 

interest. 

1.11  Budget informa�on 

The budget of the en�ty is prepared on a cash basis while the annual financial statements 

are prepared on an accrual basis. The budget covers the period from 01 April at the 

beginning of each period un�l 31 March being the end of the period. 

The budget is prepared based on the appropria�ons from Parliament and a reconcilia�on is 

included in the statement of comparison to budget.  

1.12  Going concern 

The financial statements of the en�ty are presented on a going concern basis. This is as a 

result that the assets of the en�ty exceeds its liabili�es as at 31 March 2018. Based on this, 

there is no uncertainty regarding the con�nued existence of the en�ty for the foreseeable 

future. It must be noted that the en�ty relies on transfers from the appropria�on to  fund its 

opera�ons, therefore there is no doubt regarding the funding of the future opera�ons of the 

en�ty and the ability to realise its assets and se�le its liabili�es. 
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The Execu�ve Authority is in the process to establish Single Transport Economic Regulator, it 

must be noted that, in terms of the gaze�ed STER Bill (February 2018), the Ports Regulator 

will be the core of the STER when it is formed. This eliminates any uncertainty regarding the 

con�nued existence of the Ports Regulator.  

1.13  Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash includes cash with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments, 

readily conver�ble into known amounts of cash, which are held with registered banking 

ins�tu�ons and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

1.14 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is expenditure that was made in vain and would have been 

avoided had reasonable care been exercised. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is accounted 

for as expenditure in the Statement of Financial Performance and where recovered, it is 

subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance. 

1.15 Revenue recogni�on 

Revenue from non-exchange transac�on arises when the en�ty either receives value from 

another en�ty without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange or gives value 

to another en�ty without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange.   

An asset that is recognised as a result of a non-exchange transac�on is recognised at its fair 

value at the date of the transfer.  Consequently, revenue arising from a non -exchange 

transac�on is measured at the fair value of the asset received, less the amount of any 

liabili�es that are also recognised due to condi�ons that must s�ll be sa�sfied. 

Revenue from exchange transac�ons refers to revenue that accrues to the en�ty directly in 

return for services rendered or goods sold, the value of which approximates the considera�on 

received or receivable, excluding indirect taxes, rebates and discounts. 

Revenue from exchange transac�ons is only recognised once all of the following criteria have 

been sa�sfied: 

a) The en�ty retains neither con�nuing managerial involvement to the degree usually 

associated with ownership nor effec�ve control over the goods sold; 

b) The amount of revenue can be measured reliably; and 

c) It is probable that the economic benefits or service poten�al associated with the 

transac�on will flow to the en�ty and the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect 

of the transac�on can be measured reliably. 
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The en�ty has processes and controls in place to aid in the iden�fica�on of related par�es. A 

related party is a person or an en�ty with the ability to control or jointly control the other 

party, or exercise significant influence over the other party, or vice versa, or an en�ty that is 

subject to common control, or joint control. Related party rela�onships where control exists 

are disclosed regardless of whether any transac�ons took place between the par�es during 

the repor�ng period. 

1.17 Unauthorised and Irregular expenditure 

Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Public Finance Management Act 

(PFMA) and the Public Office Bearers Act (Act No. 20 of 1998) or is in contraven�on of the 

en�ty’s supply chain management policies.  Irregular expenditure excludes unauthorised 

expenditure.   Irregular expenditure is accounted for as expenditure in the Statement of 

Financial Performance and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in 

the Statement of Financial Performance.  

Unauthorised expenditure is expenditure that has not been budgeted for, expenditure that 

is not in terms of the condi�ons of an alloca�on received from another sphere of government 

or organ of state and expenditure in the form of a grant that is not permi�ed.  Unauthorised 

expenditure is accounted for as an expense in the Statement of Financial Performance and 

where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as income in the Statement of Financial 

Performance. 

1.18 Employee Costs

The employee costs represent the actual expenditure for basic salaries, employer 

contribu�ons, allowances and performance bonuses. The pension benefits are administered 

by the Government Pensions Administra�ons Agency; the Ports Regulator contributes to the 

agency with the balance coming from employees as per the rules governing pension. Medical 

aid benefits are administered by Discovery Medical Aid and the Ports Regulator contributes 

towards the medical aid service provider. The group life benefits are administered by Liberty 

Life, all benefits as per the condi�ons of service are available to employees. 

1.16  Related Par�es 
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2018 

R’000 
 

2017 

R’000 

 Transfers and subsidies    

    

Department of Transport 22 489  28 561 

    

 

 Sale of goods and services 

Complaint lodging fee and other income 

 

 

 

  Finance income 

 2018 

R’000 

 

101 

 

2018 

R’000 

 2017 

R’000 

 

7 

 

2017 

R’000 

    

Investment income – Standard Bank 960  957 

    

            2018             2017 

            R’000             R’000 

 Administra�ve expenses    

    

Accoun�ng fee -  - 

Bank charges 18  23 

Entertainment -  - 

Internal audit 338  392 

Sta�onery and prin�ng 174  222 

Subscrip�ons 53  49 

Training and staff development 238  927 

Venues and facili�es 132  223 

  953   1 836 

 

 Staff costs  2018 

R’000 

 2017 

R’000 

Salaries and wages 11 519  10 212 

Performance bonus/awards 1 430   1 371  

Employer contribu�ons 767  608 

 13 716  12 191 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 
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 Other opera�ng expenses  

Adver�sing 164 152 

Catering 50 42 

Communica�on costs 203 188 

Computer expenses 

Conferences                                                

593 

- 

462 

- 

Consultants 

Consumables 

465 

29 

2 296 

22 

Couriers and delivery charges 8 18 

Contracted and temporary employees 

Data and informa�on storage 

- 

18 

- 

17 

Movement in leave pay provision (41) 149 

Movement in legal costs - 55 
Insurance 67 64 

Maintenance and repairs 18 9 

Motor vehicle expenses 7 7 

Municipal services 

Parking 

Security 

Training & development - Members 

206 

161 

31 

72 

206 

143 

- 

785 

Travel, subsistence and disbursements 

Staff 

 

1 831 

 

2 441 

Travel, subsistence and disbursements 

Regulator members 

1 224 2 420 

5 106  9 476 

 Property,  plant and equipment 

2018 Cost  Accumulated 

depreciated 

 Carrying 

value 

R’000  R’000  R’000 

    

Computer equipment 2 454  (1 451)  1 003 

Office furniture and fi�ngs 981  (897)  84 

Books 74  (59)  15 

Motor vehicle 189  (91)  98 

 3 698  (2 498)  1 200 

8 

7 
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2017 Cost  Accumulated 

depreciated 

 Carrying 

value 

R’000  R’000  R’000 

    

Computer equipment 2 381  (1 185)  1 196 

Office furniture and fi�ngs 979  (799)  180 

Books 74  (52)  22 

Motor vehicle 189  (64)  125 

3 624  (2 101)  1 523 

Reconcilia�on of Property, Plant 

and Equipment for 31 March 2018

 

Opening 

carrying 

value 

 De-recogni�on  Addi�ons  Deprecia�on  Closing 

carrying 

value 

R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

         

Computer 

equipment 

Office furniture & 

fi�ngs 

Motor Vehicle 

Books 

1 196 

 

180 

 

125 

22 

 (40) 

 

- 

 

- 

- 

 133 

 

2 

 

- 

- 

 (286) 

 

(98) 

 

(27) 

(7) 

 1 003 

 

84 

 

98 

15 

1 523  (40) 135  (418)  1 200 
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Reconcilia�on of Property, Plant 

and Equipment 31 March 2017 

 

       

Opening 

carrying 

value 

 De-recogni�on  Addi�ons  Deprecia�on  Closing 

carrying 

value 

R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

         

Computer 

equipment 

Office furniture & 

fi�ngs 

Motor Vehicle 

Books 

757 

 

250 

 

152 

29 

 (20) 

 

(7) 

 

- 

- 

 580 

 

4 

 

- 

- 

 (121) 

 

(67) 

 

(27) 

(7) 

 1 196 

 

180 

 

125 

22 

1 188  (27) 584  (222)  1 523 

GRAP 17 requires the en�ty to review the useful life for all classes of Property, Plant and 

Equipment (PPE). The Regulator reviewed the useful lives and did not change the es�mates for 

all classes of PPE. The reason for no change of the es�mate was as a result that the assets are 

kept beyond their ini�al es�mated useful l ife. The Regulator did not revise the residual value 

since majority of assets are kept up un�l the end of their useful life and there’s no inten�on to 

sell the assets at the end of their useful life. The Regulator also could not reliably es�mate the 

value of the sale to be realised at the end of the asset’s useful life.  

 Intangible asset 

2018 Cost  Accumulated 

depreciated 

 Carrying 

value 

R’000  R’000  R’000 

   

Computer so�ware 416  (377)  39 

     

9 
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Intangible assets       

2017 Cost  Accumulated 

depreciated 

 Carrying 

value 

R’000  R’000  R’000 

     

Computer so�ware 416  (358)  58 

     

Reconcilia�on of Intangible assets 

Computer so�ware at 31 March 2018 

Opening 

carrying value 

 Disposal  Addi�ons  Amor�sa�on 

& 

Restatement 

 Closing 

carrying 

value 

R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

         

Computer so�ware 58  -  -  (19)  39 

58  - -  (19)  39 

Reconcilia�on of Intangible assets 

Computer so�ware at 31 March 2017 

Opening 

carrying value 

 Disposal  Addi�ons  Amor�sa�on 

& 

Restatement 

 Closing 

carrying 

value 

R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

Computer so�ware 11  -  -  47  58 

11  - -  47  58 

        

GRAP 31 requires the useful life and the amor�sa�on method to be reviewed at the end of each 

period. The Regulator did not change the es�mate of the useful life of the intangible assets a�er 

realising that the assets will be kept for a period longer than had ini�ally es�mated. It was noted 

that all intangible assets have a nil carrying value at the end of the financial year however these 

assets incorporate the future economic benefit which would be experienced through the use of 

each asset as per the accoun�ng policy of the en�ty. A reliable es�mate of the revised carrying 

amount could not be determined as an ac�ve market for the intangible assets could not be 

iden�fied since these intangible assets are old and are not easily available for new buyers on the 

market based on their old model. The Regulator has not spent any funds to enhance the nature 

of the intangible assets not spend any funds to prolong the useful life of the intangible assets. As 

a result, the amor�sa�on method of intangible assets was not changed. The reason for no change 
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is because the opera�ons of the en�ty may possibly change in the next 3 to 4 years of which 

these assets may no longer be used or its use modified when the change occurs. 

 

 Loans and receivables               2018                2017 

              R’000               R’000 

Non-current    

Deposit for car parking and lease 341  341 

   

 Trade and other receivables 2018 

R’000 

 2017 

R’000 

   

Prepaid expenditure and accrued income 109  53 

 Cash and cash equivalents 2018 

R’000 

 2017 

R’000 

Bank balances    

Standard bank cheque account 301  187 

Standard bank Investment account 14 986  15 126 

 15 287  15 313 

 

 Trade and other payables               2018                2017 

               R’000              R’000 

    

Accruals 653  500 

Receiver of Revenue 

Discovery medical aid 

Total Movements  

- 

24 

- 

 - 

24 

- 

- Amounts receivable at beginning of the 

year 

-  - 

- Transac�ons for the year -  - 

   

677  524 

The en�ty has considered payables discoun�ng as required by the standards of GRAP, the en�ty has 

a policy and is required by legisla�on to pay all outstanding invoices within the 30 days period. This 

has resulted on the payables discoun�ng not being necessary to be applied. 
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   Opera�ng lease commitments 

The Ports Regulator entered into a three year opera�ng lease agreement with Delta Property 

Fund that commenced on 01 October 2016 for R 128 146.90 per month including vat with an 

escala�on clause of 8% annually. The lease will expire on 30 September 2019. 

Minimum lease payments due 2018 

R’000 

 2017 

R’000 

  - not later than one year   1 727    1 599 

  - later than one year and not later than five years   897   2 624 

  - later than five years -  - 

  2 624  4 223 

   

 Leave pay provision 2018 

R’000 

 2017 

R’000 

Carrying amount at the beginning of the period  526  322 

Addi�onal provisions made in the current period -  55 

Amount u�lised in the current period (41)  149 

Carrying amount at the end of period                485                 526 

 

Leave pay provision comprises the value of leave days 

owing to employees and legal costs as at 31 March 2018

    

 Cash generated from opera�ons                2018                2017 

               R’000               R’000 

Surplus/(Deficit) for the period  (501)   1 630  

   

Non-cash items 556  430 

Deprecia�on  418  222 

Amor�sa�on  19  (47) 

(Gain) / Loss on sale of assets  (14)  27 

Working capital changes     

Increase / (Decrease) in payables  153  363 

(Decrease) / Increase in provisions  (41)  204 

(Increase) / Decrease  in receivables  (56)  (1) 

(Increase) / Decrease in inventory 

Other working capital movements 

 - 

77 

 - 

(338) 

     

Net cash flow from opera�ng ac�vi�es  55  2 060 

14 
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 2018 

R’000 

  2017 

R’000 

 Regulator Members’ Remunera�on No of 

individuals 

    

Members 08* 1 371   1 860 

 

There is a current total of 10 Regulator Members,  

   * Mr. D Thwala’s contract came into an end on 30 May 2017 . 

**Mr. R Khan resigned effec�ve from 31 July 2017. 

 

Regulator Members’ Remunera�on  

Member 
2018 
R’000 

2017 
R’000 

2016 
R’000 

G Serobe - - 18 

T Tsautse 198 232 178 

A Ngcobo 143 170 160 

A Mahlalutye 145 118 108 

P Mazibuko 2 66 149 

*D Thwala 19 182 205 

T Mufamadi 121 209 85 

A Hirachund 198 204 66 

G Taylor 152 173 102 

G Thimane 268 168 74 

**R Khan 29 179 94 

L Mabandla 96 157 79 

Total 1 371 1 860 1 318 
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 Execu�ve Member’s Remunera�on No of individuals 2018 

R’000 

 2017 

R’000 

    

3 5 893  5 401 

Marissa Damons (Execu�ve Legal Manager) 
2018 

R’000 

2017 

R’000 

Basic Salary 873 822 

Performance Bonus 210 192 

Ac�ng Allowance - - 

Taxable allowance  338 321 

Medical Aid Allowance 37 31 

Total 1 458 1 366 

 

Thokozani Mhlongo (Chief Financial Officer) 
2018 

R’000 

2017 

R’000 

Basic Salary 744 637 

Performance Bonus 229 173 

Ac�ng Allowance - - 

Taxable allowance 450 390 

Medical Aid Allowance 46 35 

Total 1 469 1 235 

 

Mahesh Fakir ( Chief Execu�ve Officer) 
2018 

R’000 

2017 

R’000 

Basic Salary 1 828 1 721 

Taxable Allowance 728 690 

Performance Bonus 362 341 

Travel Allowance 48 48 

Total 2 966 2 800 

 

 Con�ngent liabili�es 

The en�ty under the Tribunal func�on, was taken on review to court for one of the ma�ers, the 

court decision taken on 25/05/2018 will result in the en�ty having to pay the costs of the counsel 

which is es�mated at R250 000. The court order has not yet determined the exact costs and 

these are merely es�mates from the en�ty a�orneys. 
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 Events A�er Balance sheet date 

There were no post balance sheet date events as at 31 March 2018 that required amendment to 

the neither annual financial statements nor disclosure on the notes to the financial statements. 

 

 

 Reconcilia�on of budget surplus/deficit with Statement of Financial Performance  

Ports Regulator presents its approved budget on a cash basis and the financial statements on the 

accrual basis. 

Economic 

Classifica�on 
Reason for Variance 

Revenue 

Transfers n/a 

Interest 

Received 
Interest is based on the investment balance kept by the en�ty 

Sundry income The en�ty received a bill of cost for the ma�er that was taken on review.  

Sale of goods & 

services 

There were three complaints/appeals that were submi�ed to the en�ty during 

the financial year. 

  

Expenses 

Deprecia�on & 

amor�sa�on 
Difference was caused by some planned purchases that did not take place. 

Staff costs 
Unspent expenditure arose due to delays in appointment of interns and 

funded posts vacancies. 

General 

expenses 

The en�ty was allowed to retain unspent surplus funds; therefore majority of 

expenditure was on projects that were partly funded by the unspent funds. 

Capital Budget  

Property Plant 

and equipment 

Some of the computer equipment were stolen from our office premises and a 

need to acquire new computer equipment was iden�fied, also a new 

microphone speaker was purchased for press conferences.  
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2018 

   

2017 

   R’000    R’000 

   

 Unauthorised, irregular and fruitless and wasteful 

expenditure 

   

     

Irregular expenditure  116  - 

The Ports Regulator incurred irregular expenditure of R 115 694 as 

a result of total expenditure that exceeded the budget. 

   

  Taxa�on 

No provision is made for taxa�on as the en�ty is exempt from taxa�on per Sec�on 10(1) of 

the Income Tax Act, Act No 58 of 1962. 

 

 Risk Management 2018 2017 

Interest rate risk   

As the en�ty has no significant interest-bearing assets, the en�ty’s 

income and opera�ng cash flows are substan�ally independent of 

changes in market interest rates. 

  

   

Liquidity risk 2018 2017 

The en�ty’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover 

future commitments. The en�ty manages liquidity risk through an 

ongoing review of future commitments and credit facili�es.  

Cash flow forecasts are prepared and adequate u�lised borrowing 

facili�es are monitored. 

The en�ty relies solely on transfers from the parent Department of 

Transport. These transfers are transferred by the department to the 

en�ty at the beginning of each quarter to fund the cash flows for 

that specific quarter. Any delays in transfers may cause cash flow 

risks to the en�ty. The table below analyses the en�ty’s financial 

liabili�es into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining 

period at the Statement of Financial Posi�on to the contractual 

maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the 

contractual undiscounted cash flows 

  

Not later than one month 2018 

R’000 

2017 

R’000 
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Payables 677 524 

Maximum credit risk exposure 

 

 

 

 

2018 

R’000 

 

 

 

2017 

R’000 

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents. The 

en�ty only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit 

standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party. 

  

    

The financial assets carried at amor�sed cost expose the en�ty to 

credit risk. The value of the maximum exposure to credit risk are as 

follows for each of classes of financial assets at amor�sed cost: 

  

Cash and cash equivalents 15 287 15 313 

Trade and other receivables from exchange transac�ons  109 53 

The en�ty has sufficient insurance cover and sufficient funds to service its financial liabili�es.  

 

 

 Related party transac�ons 

There were related party transac�ons rela�ng to the transfers of funds from the Department of 

Transport to Ports Regulator as per the voted funds in the appropria�on statement:  

Descrip�on of transac�on 
2018 

R’000 

2017 

R’000 

Transfers from the Department of Transport 22 489 28 561 

 

 Correc�on of error 

During the 2018/17 financial year, the en�ty received a refund for the expenses that were 

incurred and expensed in the 2017/16 financial year. This refund of R 76 719.99 arose due to 

refunds made by our suppliers in the current financial year for training and development of 

Regulator staff & members and the reversal of R 568 258 over charge for deprecia�on of 

computer equipment in prior years which led to a movement in the company’s net assets. The 

effect of the change is as follows: 
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 Prior year adjustment        77 

27       Audit Fees 

 

2018 

R’000 

 

2017 

R’000 

Audit fees relates to the payments made to Auditor General                                                                                           

for the Regularity audit.  

                  

               319                 320 

28       Legal Fees 2018 

R’000 

2017 

R’000 

Legal fees cons�tutes of tribunal proceedings.     419        398 

Statement of Changes in Net assets  R’000 

Correc�on of prior year error     568 
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